

**OFFICIAL JOURNAL**  
**OF THE**  
**HOUSE OF**  
**REPRESENTATIVES**  
**OF THE**  
**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

**EIGHTH DAY'S PROCEEDINGS**

**Forty-eighth Regular Session of the Legislature  
Under the Adoption of the  
Constitution of 1974**

House of Representatives  
State Capitol  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Thursday, March 24, 2022

The House of Representatives was called to order at 2:00 P.M., by the Honorable Clay Schexnayder, Speaker of the House of Representatives.

**Morning Hour**

**ROLL CALL**

The roll being called, the following members answered to their names:

**PRESENT**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Adams	Geymann	Miller, G.
Amedee	Glover	Mincey
Bacala	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bagley	Green	Nelson
Beaullieu	Harris	Newell
Bishop	Hilferty	Orgeron
Bourriaque	Hodges	Owen, C.
Brass	Horton	Owen, R.
Brown	Hughes	Phelps
Bryant	Huval	Pierre
Butler	Illg	Pressly
Carpenter	Ivey	Riser
Carrier	Jefferson	Romero
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Coussan	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Cox	Jordan	Selders
Crews	Kerner	St. Blanc
Davis	LaCombe	Stagni
DeVillier	Landry	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Tarver
Echols	Lyons	Thomas
Edmonds	Mack	Thompson
Edmonston	Magee	Turner
Emerson	Marcelle	Villio
Farnum	Marino	Wheat
Firment	McCormick	White
Freeman	McFarland	Willard
Freiberg	McKnight	Wright
Frieman	McMahen	Zeringue
Gadberry	Miguez	

Total - 95

The Speaker announced that there were 95 members present and a quorum.

**Prayer**

Prayer was offered by Rep. Mack.

**Pledge of Allegiance**

Rep. Villio led the House in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.

**Reading of the Journal**

On motion of Rep. Davis, the reading of the Journal was dispensed with.

On motion of Rep. Davis, the Journal of March 23, 2022, was adopted.

**Petitions, Memorials, and  
Communications**

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

**Message from the Senate**

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS**

March 24, 2022

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has concurred in the following House Concurrent Resolutions:

House Concurrent Resolution No. 33  
Returned without amendments

Respectfully submitted,

YOLANDA J. DIXON  
Secretary of the Senate

**Message from the Senate**

**SIGNED SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS**

March 24, 2022

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the President of the Senate has signed the following Senate Concurrent Resolutions:

Senate Concurrent Resolution Nos. 5, 9 and 10

and ask the Speaker of the House of Representatives to affix his signature to the same.

Respectfully submitted,

YOLANDA J. DIXON  
Secretary of the Senate

The Senate Concurrent Resolutions contained herein were signed by the Speaker of the House.

Message from the Senate

SENATE BILLS

March 24, 2022

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has finally passed the following Senate Bills:

Senate Bill Nos. 3, 12, 23, 28, 41, 85, 172, 313 and 371

Respectfully submitted,

YOLANDA J. DIXON
Secretary of the Senate

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on First Reading

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on first reading were taken up, read, and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

SENATE BILL NO. 3— BY SENATOR ALLAIN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 49:214.36(J) and (O)(2), relative to the Coastal Zone Management Program; to provide for the reimbursement of costs; to provide for distribution of monies collected; to provide for the use of funds; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 12— BY SENATOR REESE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 51:3121(C)(3)(a), relative to the Competitive Projects Payroll Incentive Program; to extend the termination date of the program; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 23— BY SENATOR ALLAIN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:86(C) and (E)(7) and to enact R.S. 30:86(D)(11), relative to the Oilfield Site Restoration Fund; to provide for the deposit of monies into the fund; to provide for technical changes; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 28— BY SENATOR ALLAIN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:201.2(C)(3)(b)(iv) and (v), relative to state partnership audit adjustments; to provide for the

calculation methodology for distributive shares reported to tiered partners; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 41— BY SENATOR REESE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 51:2461, relative to the Louisiana Quality Jobs Program Act; to provide for an extension of the program application deadline; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 85— BY SENATORS CORTEZ, ALLAIN, MCMATH, MORRIS, SMITH AND WARD

AN ACT

To enact Subpart KK of Part 1 of Chapter 1 of Subtitle II of Title 47 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 47:120.181, relative to individual income tax refund checkoff donations; to authorize a refund checkoff donation for Maddie's Footprints; to provide relative to the expiration of the checkoff donation; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 172— BY SENATOR REESE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 39:1405.4(A) and (E), and to repeal R.S. 39:1405.4(H), relative to the costs of issuance and reporting requirements for bonds approved or sold by the State Bond Commission; to remove penalty provisions; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 313— BY SENATOR CLOUD

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:441(D), relative to Mayor's court; to provide relative to training requirements for mayors and magistrates; to provide relative to verification of training; to provide relative to continuing education; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 371— BY SENATOR HARRIS

AN ACT

To enact Subpart DDD of Part I of Chapter 1 of Subtitle II of Title 47 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 47:120.371, relative to state individual income tax refund checkoffs for certain donations; to provide for a method for individuals to donate all or a portion of any individual income tax refund due to them to the University of New Orleans Foundation; to provide for the administration and disbursement of donated monies; to provide for reporting; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

### Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent at this time.

### Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent

The following members introduced the following entitled House and House Concurrent Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

#### HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 19—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE

#### A RESOLUTION

To amend and readopt House Rule 14.24(B) of the Rules of Order of the House of Representatives to provide relative to notice of interim meetings.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

#### HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 20—

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI

#### A RESOLUTION

To adopt House Rule 8.23 of the Rules of Order of the House of Representatives and to repeal House Rule 8.21 of the Rules of Order of the House of Representatives relative to procedures and requirements applicable to conference committee reports.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

#### HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 21—

BY REPRESENTATIVE CARPENTER

#### A RESOLUTION

To designate March 2022 as Triple Negative Breast Cancer Awareness Month in Louisiana.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Carpenter, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 35—

BY REPRESENTATIVE BACALA

#### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To request a joint study effort by the Department of Children and Family Services, the Louisiana Department of Health, the Louisiana Department of Education, the Louisiana Housing Corporation, and the Louisiana Workforce Commission to examine the phenomena known as "benefits cliffs" in public assistance programs and to submit recommendations to the legislature concerning means by which these disincentives for work can be eliminated.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 36—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUSTIN MILLER

#### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To continue and provide with respect to the Healthcare Workplace Violence Task Force created by House Concurrent Resolution No. 121 of the 2021 Regular Session of the Legislature.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 37—

BY REPRESENTATIVE AMEDEE

#### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To direct the state Department of Education to publish certain student enrollment information on its website each year.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 38—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS

#### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Louisiana Department of Health to facilitate a working group to study the unique needs of individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities and co-occurring behavioral health conditions and to report findings and recommendations of the working group to the legislative committees on health and welfare.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 39—

BY REPRESENTATIVE BUTLER

#### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Louisiana Department of Health to study barriers to hiring of direct support professionals who provide Medicaid-covered services to people with disabilities and to report findings of the study to the legislative committees on health and welfare and the Joint Medicaid Oversight Committee.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 40—

BY REPRESENTATIVE TURNER

#### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Louisiana Department of Health to study the actual costs of providing nursing services in the Medicaid-funded New Opportunities Waiver and Residential Options Waiver programs and to residents of intermediate care facilities for persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities; to identify potential means for fully funding nursing services for persons served by these programs and facilities; and to report its findings to certain legislative committees.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

### Introduction of House Bills and Joint Resolutions

The following named members introduced the following House Bills and Joint Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 862—

BY REPRESENTATIVE JEFFERSON

#### AN ACT

To appropriate monies out of the state general fund for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 to be used to pay the consent judgment captioned "Kirk Waters and Deborah Waters versus United Fire & Casualty, Acme Glass & Mirror Co., Inc., and State of Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development" between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Kirk Waters and Deborah Waters; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

# Page 4 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

## HOUSE BILL NO. 863—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUSTIN MILLER  
AN ACT

To appropriate monies out of the state general fund for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 to be used to pay the consent judgment captioned "John Dixon Shupe and Kristin Aubin, on behalf of their minor child Hannah Shupe versus State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development" between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and John Dixon Shupe and Kristin Aubin on behalf of their minor child Hannah Shupe; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

## HOUSE BILL NO. 864—

BY REPRESENTATIVES DAVIS AND MCKNIGHT AND SENATOR WARD  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 34:1133(B), (C)(7), and (G), 1134(A), and 1135(B) and to enact R.S. 34:1136(D), relative to the Board of Louisiana River Pilot Review and Oversight; to provide for the membership of the board; to provide for per diem for the judge member; to provide for a procedure regarding review of proposed rules; to provide for board funds; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

## HOUSE BILL NO. 865—

BY REPRESENTATIVE NELSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:24.10(A)(4), relative to literacy; to require public schools to ensure that certain textbooks and instructional materials are not used in reading instruction; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

## HOUSE BILL NO. 866—

BY REPRESENTATIVE FRIEMAN  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:165(B) and to enact R.S. 22:81(D), 82(D) and (E), 111(D), 112(D) and (E), and 165(C), relative to capital and surplus requirements for certain domestic insurers; to provide for minimum requirements for domestic insurers writing homeowners' insurance and fire and allied lines insurance; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

### Reports of Committees

The following reports of committees were received and read:

Report of the Committee on

Administration of Criminal Justice

March 24, 2022

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to submit the following report:

House Bill No. 51, by Goudeau  
Reported with amendments. (9-0)

House Bill No. 68, by Carpenter  
Reported favorably. (9-2)

House Bill No. 99, by McMahan  
Reported with amendments. (9-0)

House Bill No. 134, by Marino  
Reported with amendments. (9-0)

House Bill No. 247, by Magee  
Reported favorably. (8-0)

House Bill No. 323, by Nelson  
Reported favorably. (7-0)

House Bill No. 432, by Phelps  
Reported favorably. (9-0)

House Bill No. 434, by Phelps  
Reported with amendments. (9-0)

House Bill No. 443, by Magee  
Reported with amendments. (7-0)

House Bill No. 491, by Bacala  
Reported favorably. (7-0)

TONY BACALA  
Vice Chairman

Report of the Committee on

Education

March 24, 2022

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Education to submit the following report:

House Bill No. 98, by Magee  
Reported favorably. (10-0)

House Bill No. 136, by Marino  
Reported favorably. (10-0)

House Bill No. 156, by Freiberg  
Reported with amendments. (9-0)

House Bill No. 261, by Magee  
Reported favorably. (10-0)

House Bill No. 274, by Edmonds  
Reported favorably. (11-0)

House Bill No. 346, by Thompson  
Reported favorably. (11-0)

House Bill No. 416, by Marino  
Reported favorably. (10-0)

LANCE HARRIS  
Chairman

Report of the Committee on

Health and Welfare

March 24, 2022

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Health and Welfare to submit the following report:

House Concurrent Resolution No. 4, by Butler  
Reported favorably. (11-0)

House Bill No. 55, by Butler  
Reported favorably. (11-0)

House Bill No. 284, by Stagni  
Reported with amendments. (11-0)

House Bill No. 582, by Stagni  
Reported with amendments. (11-0)

LAWRENCE A. "LARRY" BAGLEY  
Chairman

### House and House Concurrent Resolutions Lying Over

The following House and House Concurrent Resolutions lying over were taken up and acted upon as follows:

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 34— BY REPRESENTATIVE BOURRIUAQUE

##### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To approve the annual state integrated coastal protection plan for Fiscal Year 2023, as adopted by the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority Board.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

### House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading to be Referred

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading to be referred to committees were taken up, read, and referred to committees, as follows:

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 854— BY REPRESENTATIVES STAGNI AND MAGEE

##### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:2011(A), relative to occupational diseases; provides relative to members employed in the classified fire service; to provide for an extension to the rebuttable presumption; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 855— BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMAS

##### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:361.2(A)(3)(c), relative to tinting of motor vehicle windows for a medical exemption; to provide for an exemption relative to certain diagnosed medical or physical conditions; to provide for the duration of the medical exemption applicable to window tinting; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 856— BY REPRESENTATIVE GEYMANN

##### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:1892(G), relative to the appraisal clause required in all residential property insurance policies; to provide notice that lawsuits regarding a policy will not be held in abatement during the appraisal process; to provide for the courts' discretion in setting a deadline for timely demanding appraisal or completion of an appraisal; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Insurance.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 857— BY REPRESENTATIVE HORTON

##### AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:463.214, relative to motor vehicle special prestige license plates; to establish the "Louisiana Wild Turkey Federation" specialty license plate; to provide for the creation, issuance, design, fees, implementation, distribution, and rule promulgation applicable to such license plate; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 858— BY REPRESENTATIVES BAGLEY AND HORTON

##### AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 40:1087.1(B)(6) and (I), relative to the comprehensive sports injury management program for student athletics; to repeal requirements that schools follow guidelines regarding heat acclimatization and wet bulb globe temperature policy; to repeal certain definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 859— BY REPRESENTATIVE MUSCARELLO

##### AN ACT

To enact R.S. 44:4.1(E), relative to public records; to provide relative to exceptions to public records; to provide for an exception relative to raw data, material, information, or documentation maintained by the Louisiana Public Defender Board; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 860— BY REPRESENTATIVE MCFARLAND

##### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 48:77(C)(introductory paragraph) and (D) and to enact R.S. 48:77(F), relative to the use of certain monies in the Transportation Trust Fund; to provide for the utilization of monies deposited in the subfund; to provide relative to securing federal funding for transportation; to decrease monies utilized for mega projects; to increase monies utilized for preservation projects; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 861—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE ST. BLANC  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:407.65(D) and to repeal R.S. 17:407.64(B) and 407.66 and R.S. 40:1563.2, relative to family and in-home child care providers; to provide relative to the inspection of such providers; to provide relative to the powers and duties of the state Department of Education and the office of state fire marshal with respect to such providers; to provide for the transfer and use of monies; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Education.

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on  
Second Reading to be Referred**

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading to be referred were taken up, read, and referred to committees, as follows:

**SENATE BILL NO. 14—**  
BY SENATOR POPE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:2441 and 2464(C), relative to the Louisiana Board for Hearing Aid Dealers; to provide for registration and licensure; to provide legislative intent; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Commerce.

**SENATE BILL NO. 31—**  
BY SENATOR FRED MILLS  
AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 28:4, 237, Chapter 2 of Title 28 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 28:241 through 249, and 824(A) through (H), R.S. 36:259(B)(12), (23), (27), (28), (29), and (33), R.S. 40:31.65(A), 642, 700.12, Part XI of Chapter 4 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1051 through 1055, 1057.12, 1058, 1105.10(C), 1105.11(C), 1135.13, Part III of Subchapter B of Chapter 5-D of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1185.1 through 1185.6, 1189.6, Part III of Subchapter D of Chapter 5-D of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1215.1 and 1215.2, Part VI of Subchapter D of Chapter 5-D of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1221.1 through 1221.11, 1249.3(B), 1261.1, 1263.5, Part IX of Subchapter A of Chapter 5-F of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1277.1, Part X of Subchapter A of Chapter 5-F of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1279.1, 1283.2, Part V of Subchapter B of Chapter 5-F of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1290.1 through 1290.4, Part I-A of Chapter 6 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1312.1 through 1312.27, Subpart E of Part III of Chapter 6 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:1460.1 and 1460.2, 1597.2(B), 2001, 2009.1, 2013.4 through 2013.6, 2016, 2018.4, 2108, 2116.34(B), 2120.9, Part VI-B of Chapter 11 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2175.11 through 2175.15, Part VI-C of Chapter 11 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2176.1, Part IX

of Chapter 11 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2194 through 2194.5, Part X-A of Chapter 11 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2195.6, Part XI of Chapter 11 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2196 through 2196.7, Part XV of Chapter 11 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2200.11 through 2200.15, Chapter 16 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2331 and 2332, Chapter 17 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2351 through 2355, 2405.2, Chapter 21 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2481 through 2483, Chapter 23 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2501 through 2505, and Chapter 24 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 40:2511 through 2519, and R.S. 46:52.2, Subpart A-1 of Part I of Chapter 3 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:160 through 160.11, Subpart B of Part I of Chapter 3 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:161 through 165, Subpart C of Part II of Chapter 3 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:261, Subpart D-3 of Part II of Chapter 3 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:287.1 through 287.9, Subpart D-1 of Part VI-A of Chapter 3 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:440.4 through 440.8, 1094(D), 1442.3, Chapter 25 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:1991 through 1996, 2405.1, Chapter 35-A of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:2431 through 2434, Chapter 52 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, consisting of R.S. 46:2671 through 2675, and 2758.2(E) and (F), relative to health care; to repeal certain inactive or obsolete laws; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**SENATE BILL NO. 38—**  
BY SENATOR HENSGENS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:10(A)(2)(a), the introductory paragraph of (i) and (aa) and (ee), (ii), and (iii), (b)(i), (ii)(aa), (bb), (dd), (ee), and (ff), and (iii), (e)(ii), (h), and (i) and (3) and (B), and to enact R.S. 30:10(A)(2)(a)(i)(ff) and (b)(ii)(gg), (hh), (ii), and (jj), (iv), (v), (vi), and (vii), and (C), relative to drilling units; to provide for definitions; to provide for procedures, obligations, and remedies; to provide for written notice; to provide for information required to be furnished; to provide for indemnification; to provide for changes of ownership; to provide for title opinions; to provide for subsequent unit operations; to provide terminology; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 91—**  
BY SENATOR HENSGENS  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 49:191(13)(a) and to repeal R.S. 49:191(11), relative to the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority and the Coastal Restoration and Protection Authority Board, including provisions to provide for the re-creation of the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority and the Coastal Restoration and Protection Authority Board and the statutory entities made a part of the department by law; to provide for the

effective termination date for all statutory authority for the existence of such statutory entities; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 111—**  
BY SENATOR LUNEAU

AN ACT

To repeal Chapter 5-K of Title 25 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 comprised of R.S. 25:380.81 through 380.87 and R.S. 36:744(F)(1)(b), relative to the Tioga Heritage Park and Museum; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 121—**  
BY SENATOR BERNARD

AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 37:1227, relative to the display of pharmacy permits; to repeal the requirement for display of a pharmacy permit; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**SENATE BILL NO. 201—**  
BY SENATOR JACKSON

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:5151(C)(1) and (2), relative to health insurance coverage offered by parish governments to their employees and officials; to provide that the district public defender and his employees or contract attorneys may participate in such insurance coverage; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 215—**  
BY SENATOR LUNEAU

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:2501.1 and to enact R.S. 33:2561.1, relative to certain municipal fire and police civil service boards; to authorize attorney fees for the appealing employee when a decision of the employee's appointing authority is reversed under certain circumstances; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 237—**  
BY SENATOR FIELDS

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:9097.35, relative to East Baton Rouge Parish; to create the Sagefield Crime Prevention and Improvement District; to provide relative to the boundaries, purpose, governance, and powers and duties of the district; to provide relative to district funding, including the authority to impose a parcel fee within the district, subject to voter approval; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 380—**  
BY SENATOR PETERSON

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:9039.62, 9039.68(A)(3) and (B)(1), (2)(b), and (3), 9039.69(A)(3) and (5), and 9039.72(A)(14), and to enact R.S. 33:9039.63.1, 9039.68(B)(2)(c), 9039.69(C), and 9039.72(D), relative to Orleans Parish; to provide relative to the BioDistrict New Orleans; to provide relative to the boundaries and powers and duties of the district; to provide relative to the creation of subdistrict; to require that district projects be in compliance with certain rules and regulations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

### House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading Reported by Committee

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading reported by committee were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 8—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE FONTENOT

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:95(H)(1), relative to carrying of weapons; to provide relative to the crime of illegal carrying of weapons; to provide for exceptions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

#### HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 8 by Representative Fontenot

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 18, after "general," delete the remainder of the line and insert the following:

"city prosecutors, designated assistant city prosecutors, a United States congressman from Louisiana and his designee, a United States senator from Louisiana and his designee, and justices of the peace from"

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 79—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE ECHOLS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:550.14(A), relative to meetings of the board of directors of certain captive insurers; to provide for the

# Page 8 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

minimum number of meetings that must be held annually; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Insurance.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## HOUSE BILL NO. 82—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ILLG

AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 22:821(C), relative to the authority of the commissioner of insurance to retain funds collected from fees charged for the issuance of a duplicate insurance producer license card; to repeal such fees.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Insurance.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## HOUSE BILL NO. 88—

BY REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:2119, relative to curricula; to require instruction in public schools on certain civics and history topics during a week each year designated as Celebrate Freedom Week; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## HOUSE BILL NO. 90—

BY REPRESENTATIVES MARCELLE, ADAMS, BAGLEY, COX, FREIBERG, TRAVIS JOHNSON, LANDRY, LARVADAIN, DUSTIN MILLER, NEWELL, AND SELDERS AND SENATOR BARROW

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 36:251(C)(1) and to enact R.S. 36:258(E) and Part I-B of Chapter 11 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 40:2031 and 2032, relative to the composition of the Louisiana Department of Health; to create within the department an office on women's health; to provide for the purposes, duties, and functions of the office; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Health and Welfare to Original House Bill No. 90 by Representative Marcelle

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, at the end of line 21, insert a semicolon ";" and "prohibition"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, at the beginning of line 22, insert "A."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, after line 3, insert the following:

"B. The office on women's health shall not do any of the following:

(1) Utilize any personnel or funding to promote abortion.

(2) Coordinate with any entity that promotes abortion."

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the amendments were adopted.

Under the rules, the above bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and recommitted to the Committee on Appropriations.

## HOUSE BILL NO. 118—

BY REPRESENTATIVE FIRMENT

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:2171(D) and (H) through (L) and to enact R.S. 22:2171(C)(23) through (26) and (M), relative to the Louisiana Property and Casualty Insurance Commission; to provide for the members of the commission; to create an ad hoc committee under the commission to study catastrophe property claims; to provide for the members of the ad hoc committee to study catastrophe property claims; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 118 by Representative Firment

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 3, delete "homeowners" and insert "homeowners"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 4, delete "of insurance"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 13, change "chairman" to "chairperson"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 15, change "chairman" to "chairperson"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, between lines 27 and 28, insert the following:

"(13) A representative of the American Property Casualty Insurance Association."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 4, line 1, delete "of insurance"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 4, line 3, delete "of insurance"



AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 4, line 9, delete "of insurance"

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 122—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE HUVAL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 49:191(1) and to repeal R.S. 49:191(10)(a), relative to the Department of Insurance, including provisions to provide for the re-creation of the Department of Insurance and the statutory entities made a part of the department by law; to provide for the effective termination date for all statutory authority for the existence of such statutory entities; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Insurance.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 131—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE COUSSAN

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:423.1, relative to teacher salaries; to provide for the compensation of teachers whose employment is interrupted by military service; to provide for application; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 133—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:7(2)(d) and (f)(ii), (6)(a)(ii) and (b)(i)(bb) and (ii), and (8), 7.2(C), 7.5(A), 10.7.1(E)(1) and (H)(4)(b), 24.1(B) and (D)(1), 24.9(B)(8), 25.1(A)(1) and (2), (B)(1) and (2), (C), and (E)(1), 64(A)(3), 105.1(D), 151.3(C)(3), 203(introductory paragraph), 221(A)(1)(b) and (B)(1)(b), 222(C)(1), 372(introductory paragraph), 391.2(introductory paragraph), 392.1(C)(3), 395(A), 396(introductory paragraph) and (1), 407.1(introductory paragraph), 407.33, 407.62(introductory paragraph), 407.82(introductory paragraph), 407.91(introductory paragraph), 409.2(introductory paragraph), 416(A)(1)(c)(iii)(I), (B)(1)(a), (C)(1) and (2)(d)(ii), (H)(1), and (K), 419.2(D), 434(A), 441(introductory paragraph), 540(introductory paragraph), 1233(introductory paragraph), 1519.1(introductory paragraph), 1672, 1673, 1942, 1943(A) and (C), 1944(D), 1945.2(B), 1946(A), 1947(C), 1962(introductory paragraph) and (1), 1970.2(introductory paragraph), 1970.22(introductory paragraph), 1970.24(B)(1), 1972(introductory paragraph), 1982(introductory paragraph), 1987(C), 1989.2(introductory paragraph), 1990(B)(1)(b) and (C)(1)(a) and (2)(a)(i)(introductory paragraph) and (ii), 1991(A)(introductory paragraph), 2803(introductory paragraph) and (1), 2925(A)(6), 2942, 2990.2, 3002, 3005(G), 3047.6(A)(1)(c), 3047.7(C), 3050.11(C)(1)(b) and (c), 3052, 3082(introductory paragraph), 3092(introductory paragraph), 3100.2(introductory paragraph), 3102(introductory paragraph), 3129.9(A)(introductory paragraph), 3140.1(introductory paragraph), 3162(C)(8), 3165.2(B), 3202(introductory

paragraph), 3394.2(introductory paragraph), 3399.12(introductory paragraph), 3399.15(A), 3399.21(introductory paragraph), 3399.31(introductory paragraph), 3602(introductory paragraph), 3702(introductory paragraph), 3772(introductory paragraph) and (2), 3801(D), 3822(introductory paragraph), 3831(introductory paragraph), 3873(introductory paragraph), 3882(introductory paragraph), 3973(introductory paragraph), 4002.3(introductory paragraph), 4013(introductory paragraph), 4036.1(D)(1), and 4041(introductory paragraph), to enact R.S. 17:2351(introductory paragraph), and to repeal R.S. 17:7(2)(b) and (32), 7.5(B), 10.7.1(H)(6), 24.4(F)(5), 393, 407.23(C)(3), and 1970.24(E)(1)(o)(ii), relative to providing technical corrections for Title 17 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950; to provide for technical corrections; to provide for standardization of language; to remove obsolete reporting requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 133 by Representative Harris

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 31, line 8, after "(1)" and before "or" delete "'Child, "children"' and insert "'Child," "children"."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 32, line 2, delete "meanings." and insert "meanings:"

On motion of Rep. Harris, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 149—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE ILLG

AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 28:913.1(D), relative to the Jefferson Parish Human Services Authority; to repeal provisions requiring that the Jefferson Parish attorney be the legal advisor for the authority; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 165—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES ZERINGUE AND ORGERON

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:127(E) and 209(4)(a)(introductory paragraph) and R.S. 41:1733(D), relative to wind energy; to establish a maximum acreage for wind leases; to provide for operating agreements relative to the production of wind energy; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 166—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE GREGORY MILLER  
A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to amend Article III, Section 18(A) and (B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, to provide relative to gubernatorial action on a bill and matters related thereto; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

Under the rules, the above bill was ordered engrossed and recommitted to the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 173—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:587(C), relative to criminal identification and information; to provide relative to a criminal history records check for gaming licenses; to provide relative to information made available from the Louisiana Bureau of Criminal Identification and Information; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 173 by Representative Stefanski

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 6, after "1950," delete the remainder of the line and insert the following:

"for each applicant shall be fingerprinted, and the fingerprints shall be forwarded"

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 182—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HOLLIS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:1653(A), 1654(B)(8), and 1657.1(C)(1)(introductory paragraph), relative to third-party administrators; to modify requirements relative to annual reports; to provide grounds for the commissioner to deny, suspend, or revoke a license; to modify the filing date relative to rebate transparency reports of pharmacy benefit managers; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Insurance.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 186—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 42:1130.4, relative to unethical election practices; to provide for the standard of knowledge of a false statement; to provide for penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 197—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE TURNER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1087.1(B)(6) and (I), relative to the comprehensive sports injury management program for student athletics; to provide for definitions; to provide for the applicability of certain policies and practices of the program; to provide for exemption; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 198—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE WILLARD  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 22:941(A)(5), relative to group life insurance; to authorize discretionary group life insurance; to require out-of-state policies to meet in-state standards; to prescribe certain payment requirements; to authorize exclusions and limitations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Insurance.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 201—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 49:191(1) and to repeal R.S. 49:191(10)(g), relative to the Department of Education, including provisions to provide for the re-creation of the Department of Education and the statutory entities made a part of the department by law; to provide for the effective termination date for all statutory authority for the existence of such statutory entities; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 204—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE GREGORY MILLER  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:41(C)(1)(f) through (i), relative to the state registrar of vital records; to provide with respect to those parties who may inspect records or be issued a death certificate; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 207—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE HUGHES

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:183.3(B)(2)(b) and 5026(A)(2) and to enact R.S. 17:5026(D), relative to curricula; to revise the courses required in the high school career major program; to add Geometry as a required course; to provide for alignment with the core curriculum required for qualification for a TOPS-Tech award; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 207 by Representative Hughes

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, after "R.S. 17:183.3(B)(2)(b)" and before "relative" delete the comma "," and insert "and 5026(A)(2) and to enact R.S. 17:5026(D),"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 4, after "course;" and before "and" insert "to provide for alignment with the core curriculum required for qualification for a TOPS-Tech award;"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 6, after "R.S. 17:183.3(B)(2)(b)" delete the remainder of the line and insert "and 5026(A)(2) are hereby amended and reenacted and R.S. 17:5026(D) is hereby enacted to read as"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, between lines 5 and 6, insert the following:

§5026. High school core curriculum requirements; TOPS-Tech

A. To be eligible for a TOPS-Tech Award pursuant to this Chapter, the student shall have successfully completed the core curriculum requirements of R.S. 17:5025 or the core curriculum defined as follows:

\* \* \*

(2) Math - Four Units

(a) Algebra I (one unit); or both Algebra I, Part 1 and Algebra I, Part 2; or an applied or hybrid algebra course: (one unit) and Geometry or an applied Geometry course (one unit).

(b) ~~Three~~ Two or more units from the following: ~~Geometry~~, Algebra II, Math Essentials, Financial Literacy, Business Math, Algebra III, Advanced Math - Functions and Statistics, Advanced Math - Pre-Calculus, Pre-calculus, or comparable Louisiana Technical College courses offered by Jump Start regional teams as approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. Integrated Mathematics I, II, and III may be substituted for Algebra I, Geometry, and Algebra II, and shall equal three mathematics credits.

\* \* \*

D. For a student graduating during or after the 2017-2018 school year but prior to the 2026-2027 school year, to be eligible for a TOPS-Tech Award pursuant to this Chapter, the student shall have successfully completed the core curriculum requirements of R.S. 17:5025 or the core curriculum defined as follows:

(1) English - Four Units

(a) English I.

(b) English II.

(c) Two or more units from the following: English III, English IV, AP or IB English courses, Business English, Technical Writing, or comparable Louisiana Technical College courses offered by Jump Start regional teams as approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education.

(2) Math - Four Units

(a) Algebra I (one unit); or both Algebra I, Part 1 and Algebra I, Part 2; or an applied or hybrid algebra course.

(b) Three or more units from the following: Geometry, Algebra II, Math Essentials, Financial Literacy, Business Math, Algebra III, Advanced Math - Functions and Statistics, Advanced Math - Pre-Calculus, Pre-calculus, or comparable Louisiana Technical College courses offered by Jump Start regional teams as approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. Integrated Mathematics I, II, and III may be substituted for Algebra I, Geometry, and Algebra II, and shall equal three mathematics credits.

(3) Science - Two Units

(a) Biology.

(b) One unit from the following: Chemistry I, Earth Science, Environmental Science, Agriscience I and Agriscience II (both for one unit), Physical Science, Physics, or AP or IB science courses.

(4) Social Studies - Two Units

(a) One unit from the following: U.S. History, AP U.S. History, or IB U.S. History.

(b) One unit from the following: Civics, Government, AP U.S. Government and Politics: Comparative, or AP U.S. Government and Politics: United States.

(5) At least nine credits in Jump Start course sequences, workplace experiences, and credentials. A student shall complete a regionally designed series of Career and Technical Education Jump Start coursework and workplace-based learning experiences leading to a statewide or regional Jump Start credential. This shall include courses and workplace experiences specific to the credential, courses related to foundational career skills requirements in Jump Start, and other courses, including career electives, that the Jump Start regional team determines are appropriate for the career major."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, at the end of line 7, insert "R.S. 17:5026(A)(2) as amended by this Act shall be applicable to students graduating from high school during or after the 2026-2027 school year."

On motion of Rep. Harris, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 208—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MIKE JOHNSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:1483(14)(a)(i) and (ii), relative to campaign finance disclosure; to provide relative to definitions; to change the definition of political committee; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 210—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MACK  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:231, 232.1(B), 232.2(B), 232.3(B) and (D), 232.4(B), 232.7, 232.8, 236(10) and (20), 236.4(A), 237.2(10) and (20), 237.6(A), 252(C)(4), 524(2), 528(1), 553, 1564(B)(3), 1622(4)(b)(iii), 1625(J), 1722(10)(c), 1726(B), 1728(6), and 1729(F), relative to certain provisions affecting the Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Law; to make corrective changes to certain internal citation references; to provide for technical changes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 210 by Representative Mack

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 1, delete "under" and insert "pursuant to"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, between lines 3 and 4, insert a set of asterisks " \* \* \* "

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 7, line 27, delete "R.S. 22:691 et seq." and insert in lieu thereof "R.S. 22:691.1 et seq."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 8, at the end of line 10 and beginning of line 11, delete "R.S. 22:691 et seq." and insert in lieu thereof "R.S. 22:691.1 et seq."

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 211—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MCKNIGHT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:1945.1(A)(8)(c) and (C), relative to the board of directors of the Special School District; to revise the entities submitting nominees for appointment to the board; to provide relative to the terms of service of board members; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 217—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BOURRIAQUE  
AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the transfer of certain state property in Cameron Parish; to provide for the property description; to provide for the reservation of mineral rights; to provide for terms and conditions; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment to Original House Bill No. 217 by Representative Bourriaque

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 14, after "Range 11" and before "Cameron Parish" delete "East," and insert "West,"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 9, after "February" and before "2022" delete "21,"

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 224—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE GREGORY MILLER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 24:202(F)(1) and (G), relative to meetings of the Louisiana State Law Institute; to provide for the location of meetings; to provide for meetings via electronic means; to provide for the authority of the Louisiana State Law Institute; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to Original House Bill No. 224 by Representative Gregory Miller

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 3, after line 6, insert the following:

"Section 2. This Act shall become effective upon signature by the governor or, if not signed by the governor, upon expiration of the time for bills to become law without signature by the governor, as provided by Article III, Section 18 of the Constitution of Louisiana. If vetoed by the governor and subsequently approved by the

legislature, this Act shall become effective on the day following such approval."

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 267—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE RISER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:1108(B), relative to geological sequestration of carbon dioxide; to provide relative to eminent domain; to provide for an exception to eminent domain under certain circumstances in Caldwell Parish; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 275—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BAGLEY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 49:191(1) and to repeal R.S. 49:191(10)(d), relative to the Department of Children and Family Services, including provisions to provide for the re-creation of the Department of Children and Family Services and the statutory entities made a part of the department by law; to provide for the effective termination date for all statutory authority for the existence of such statutory entities; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 294—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE NELSON

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 22:1112, relative to the guaranteed issue of Medicare supplement policies; to provide for open enrollment; to require notice to policyholders of open enrollment periods; to prohibit denial or conditioning of coverage under certain circumstances; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 294 by Representative Nelson

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 10, after "A.(1)" delete the remainder of the line and insert in lieu thereof "If, at the time of an individual's birthday each year, that individual has an existing"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, at the end of line 12, delete "forty-" and at the beginning of line 13, delete "five" and insert "sixty-three"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 15, delete "selects for" and insert "seeks to"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 17, change "lesser" to "less"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 19, delete "selected" and insert "chosen"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, line 3, delete "at least sixty-five years of age" and insert "eligible for Medicare coverage"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, at the end of line 5, delete "attained sixty-five years" and at the beginning of line 6, delete "of age" and insert "became eligible for Medicare coverage"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, line 8, delete "forty-five" and insert "sixty-three"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 2, line 10, delete "selects for" and insert "seeks to"

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 2, line 12, after "federal law" and before "provides" insert "currently"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 2, delete line 13 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof "initial eligibility for Medicare coverage, the issuer of the chosen Medicare supplement"

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 296—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 42:1132(B)(2), relative to the Board of Ethics; to provide relative to the nominating committee for membership on the Board of Ethics; to provide relative to appointing authorities for the Board of Ethics; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 314—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES TURNER AND BAGLEY  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 28:2(introductory paragraph) and (28), 51.1(A)(3)(b) and (d), 70(A), and 915(F)(3), R.S. 37:752(3), (6), (7), and (9)(c) and (d)(ii), 753(A) and (I), 761(A)(2) and (4),

764(A)(4) and (5), 771.1(A) and (B)(1), 786.1(A)(introductory paragraph) and (1), 792(B) and (C)(1), 793(G)(2), 796(A), (B)(7), (D), and (F), 796.1(A), 911(Section heading), 925(C), 929(3), 966, 971, 976, 1007(A)(2)(c), 1176(A)(3), 1218(1) and (3), 1218.1(A), 1285(A)(25), 1360.24(A)(introductory paragraph) and (3) and (B), 1360.26, 1360.31(C)(4) and (D), 1360.37(C), 1515(A)(1), 2352(introductory paragraph), (3), (8), and (9), 2353(A)(2) and (3)(a) and (C)(introductory paragraph), (2), (4), and (5), 2355(B), 2356(B), (F), and (H), 2356.1(E), 2356.2(C)(1), 2356.3(A)(2), 2357(A) and (B)(1), 2359(A), (C)(1), and (F), 2360, 2361(D) and (E), 2362, 2363(A), 2365(A), (B), and (C)(introductory paragraph), (2), and (3), 2366, 2367, 2441, 2442(introductory paragraph) and (6)(r) and (t), 2447, 2449(A) and (C) through (E), 2449.1(C)(introductory paragraph) and (E), 2453(introductory paragraph) and (2), 2457(4), (5), (7), (8), and (10), 2462, 2464, 2465(A), (B), and (C)(1), 3003(introductory paragraph) and (4)(a), and 3071(B)(1) and (2), R.S. 39:98.3(B)(2) and (3), 98.4(B)(3)(a) and (b), 1536(A)(2), 1543(D), and 1658, R.S. 40:4(A)(introductory paragraph) and (1)(a) and (b)(ii) and (iii), 5(A)(19) and (21)(a), 5.5(B), (C)(introductory paragraph) and (1) through (3), and (E), 5.5.2(D), 5.8(introductory paragraph) and (6)(introductory paragraph) and (a), 31.13(1), 39.1(A)(introductory paragraph), 50(C), 75(A), 654(Section heading), 961(introductory paragraph), (23), and (27)(b)(i), 966(A)(3), the heading of Part X-B of Chapter 4 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, R.S. 40:1024(B), 1046(Section heading), 1047(A)(introductory paragraph) and (4), 1061.17(B)(3)(a)(iii), 1122.1(B)(2), 1123.3(B)(2), 1133.15, 1139.6(introductory paragraph) and (8), 1168.3(Section heading), 1203.1(4)(a), (e), (f), (h), (m), and (z), 1203.3(D)(2), 1223.3, 2012.2, 2012.3, 2017.10, 2018.3(B)(1)(h), 2018.6(B)(introductory paragraph), (3)(b) and (i), and (C)(2)(a) and (3)(i), 2109(E)(2), 2113.2, 2120.33(introductory paragraph) and (7)(introductory paragraph) and (a), 2166.5(B)(12)(e)(introductory paragraph) and (ii), 2180.25(B)(2)(m)(v) and (q), and 2193.1(B)(5)(introductory paragraph), R.S. 46:236.1.2(A)(introductory paragraph), 450.3(introductory paragraph) and (C)(2), 450.5(A) through (C) and (D)(introductory paragraph), (1), and (3), 450.6(A) and (B)(1), 977, 1906(C), 1933(B), 1952(introductory paragraph), 2169.1(7), 2626(H)(1)(d), 2741(A), 2742(C), and 2757(C)(1)(e), and Children's Code Article 1150(2)(b) and to repeal R.S. 37:2465(D), R.S. 40:5.5(F) and (G) and 1249.1(A) and (B), and Section 4 of Act No. 449 of the 2006 Regular Session, relative to various provisions of Titles 28, 37, 39, 40, and 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, the Louisiana Children's Code, and uncodified law; to make technical corrections in provisions relative to behavioral health, human services, administration of the Louisiana Department of Health, administration of the Department of Children and Family Services, healthcare institutions and services, professions and occupations, boards and commissions, public health, food and drugs, public welfare and assistance, child welfare, and other matters within or relating to the purview of the legislative committees on health and welfare; to make corrective changes including corrections in legal citations and in names of organizations, programs, publications, institutions, agencies, boards, commissions, departments, and offices and officers of departments; to remove references to agencies, other legal entities, and programs that have been repealed or no longer exist; to repeal obsolete findings and references to outdated information; to designate undesignated statutory provisions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Health and Welfare to Original House Bill No. 314 by Representative Turner

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 6, after "796.1(A)," and before "966," insert "911(Section heading), 925(C), 929(3)," and delete "1218(3)," and insert in lieu thereof "1218(1) and (3),"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 8, after "1515(A)(1)" and before "3003(introductory paragraph)" insert "2352(introductory paragraph), (3), (8), and (9), 2353(A)(2) and (3)(a) and (C)(introductory paragraph), (2), (4), and (5), 2355(B), 2356(B), (F), and (H), 2356.1(E), 2356.2(C)(1), 2356.3(A)(2), 2357(A) and (B)(1), 2359(A), (C)(1), and (F), 2360, 2361(D) and (E), 2362, 2363(A), 2365(A), (B), and (C)(introductory paragraph), (2), and (3), 2366, 2367, 2441, 2442(introductory paragraph) and (6)(r) and (t), 2447, 2449(A) and (C) through (E), 2449.1(C)(introductory paragraph) and (E), 2453(introductory paragraph) and (2), 2457(4), (5), (7), (8), and (10), 2462, 2464, 2465(A), (B), and (C)(1),"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 13, after "39.1(A)(introductory paragraph)," and before "75(A)," insert "50(C),"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 19, after "1223.3," and before "2017.10," insert "2012.2, 2012.3,"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 20, after "(3)(i)," and before "2166.5(B)(12)(e)(introductory paragraph)" insert "2109(E)(2), 2113.2, 2120.33(introductory paragraph) and (7)(introductory paragraph) and (a),"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, delete line 1 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"(ii), 2180.25(B)(2)(m)(v) and (q), and 2193.1(B)(5)(introductory paragraph), R.S. 46:236.1.2(A)(introductory paragraph),"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, line 3, after "(B)(1)," and before "1933(B)," insert "977, 1906(C),"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, line 5, after "repeal" and before "R.S. 40:5.5(F)" insert "R.S. 37:2465(D),"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 2, line 6, after "(B)" and before "and Section" insert a comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 5, line 21, after "796.1(A)," and before "966," insert "911(Section heading), 925(C), 929(3),"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 5, line 22, delete "1218(3)," and insert in lieu thereof "1218(1) and (3),"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 5, at the end of line 23, insert "2352(introductory paragraph), (3), (8), and (9), 2353(A)(2) and (3)(a) and (C)(introductory paragraph), (2), (4), and (5), 2355(B), 2356(B), (F), and (H), 2356.1(E), 2356.2(C)(1), 2356.3(A)(2), 2357(A) and (B)(1), 2359(A), (C)(1), and (F), 2360, 2361(D) and (E), 2362, 2363(A), 2365(A), (B), and (C)(introductory paragraph), (2), and (3), 2366, 2367, 2441, 2442(introductory paragraph) and (6)(r) and (t), 2447, 2449(A) and (C) through (E), 2449.1(C)(introductory paragraph) and (E), 2453(introductory paragraph) and (2), 2457(4), (5), (7), (8), and (10), 2462, 2464, 2465(A), (B), and (C)(1),"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 12, between lines 14 and 15, insert the following:

"§911. Legislative findings; intent; purpose of ~~part~~ Part

\* \* \*

§925. Violations; penalty

\* \* \*

C. If a person licensed to practice as a registered nurse or advanced practice registered nurse is found guilty of violating any provision of ~~the~~ this Part, the board may suspend, probate, limit, or otherwise restrict, or revoke the license of such person.

\* \* \*

§929. Exceptions

The provisions of this Part shall not apply to:

\* \* \*

(3)(a) The rendering of nursing assistance by any individual in the case of immediate emergency.

(b) The rendering of nursing assistance by any individual in a disaster in accordance with the rules and regulations established by the board.

\* \* \*

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 14, between lines 4 and 5, insert the following:

"(1) The pharmacist shall administer influenza immunizations in conformance with the most current annual influenza vaccination administration protocol as set forth by the United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (~~CDC~~) Advisory Committee on Immunization Practice (~~ACIP~~)."

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 14, line 7, delete "(VAERS)"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 14, line 8, delete "CDC" and insert "United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention"

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 17, line 25, after "\$1515." and before "Board" insert "Louisiana"

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 17, after line 29, insert the following:

"§2352. Definition of terms

As used in this Chapter, the following terms ~~mean~~ have the meaning ascribed in this Section:

\* \* \*

(3) "Candidate" means any person whose application and related materials have been approved by the board. Only candidates are eligible to take the ~~written/oral~~ written and oral examination.

\* \* \*

(8) "Provisional licensed psychologist" means a person provisionally licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

(9) "Psychologist" means any person licensed as a psychologist under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. A person represents himself to be a psychologist by using any title or description of services incorporating the words "psychology", "psychological", or "psychologist", or by using any other terms which imply that he is qualified to practice psychology or that he possesses expert qualification in any area of psychology or if that person offers to the public or renders to individuals or to groups of individuals services defined as the practice of psychology in this Chapter.

\* \* \*

§2353. State board of examiners; organization; duties; meetings; fees

A. \* \* \*

(2) The governor shall appoint members for terms of five years. Each appointment by the governor shall be subject to Senate confirmation. A board member shall not be eligible to succeed himself. All psychologist appointments shall be from a list provided by the Louisiana Psychological Association. The list shall report the results of an election in which persons qualified for board membership may nominate themselves and in which licensed members of the Louisiana Psychological Association and other persons licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter are entitled to one vote for each vacancy on the board. The consumer member may apply directly to the office of the governor. The governor shall ensure that his appointments demonstrate race, gender, ethnic, and geographical diversity.

(3)(a) Each psychologist board member shall be a citizen of the United States, resident of the state of Louisiana, shall have rendered service, teaching, training, or research in psychology for at least five years, shall have held a doctoral degree in psychology from a school or college as defined in this Chapter for a period of five years, and shall be licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter for a minimum of five years.

\* \* \*

C. The board is hereby authorized and empowered to do all of the following:

\* \* \*

(2) Employ, within the limits of the funds received by the board, an administrative assistant, general legal counsel, or other personnel necessary for the proper performance of work under conducted pursuant to this Chapter.

\* \* \*

(4) Examine for, deny, approve, revoke, suspend, and renew the licenses of applicants, candidates, and psychologists as provided under in this Chapter.

(5) Conduct hearings upon complaints concerning the disciplining of a person licensed pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter and within the limitations established under in Chapter 1-A of Title 37 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 this Title.

\* \* \*

§2355. Records

\* \* \*

B. The board shall publish or cause to be published annually a list of psychologists or licensed specialists in school psychology licensed under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

§2356. Licensure of psychologists by written and oral examination

\* \* \*

B. Upon investigation of the application and other evidence submitted, the board shall, not less than thirty days prior to the examination, notify each applicant that the application and evidence submitted for licensure is satisfactory and accepted and that the applicant has been admitted to candidacy status, or unsatisfactory and rejected; if rejected, said notice the notice to the applicant shall state the reasons for such rejection.

\* \* \*

F. In the event If a candidate fails to receive a passing grade on the written/oral examination, he may apply for re-examination and shall be allowed to take a subsequent written/oral examination upon payment of such fee as is required by this Chapter.

\* \* \*

H. If the board reasonably believes that a person applying for a license or for renewal of a license is not physically and mentally competent to render psychological services with reasonable skill and safety to his patients, or is afflicted with a disease or condition, either physical or mental, which would impair his competency to render psychological services, the board may request that the person submit to a physical examination by a medical doctor approved by the board, and/or submit to a mental health examination by a psychologist and/or or psychiatrist approved by the board, or both a physical examination and a mental health examination. If the person refuses to submit to the examination, the board, after contradictory hearing and upon finding reasonable cause, may issue an order requiring the person to submit to the examination. A person who is ordered to submit to an examination in accordance with this Subsection shall not be eligible for licensure or renewal of license prior to the examination. Proceedings under pursuant to this Subsection shall be conducted in compliance with the Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq.

§2356.1. Authorization to obtain criminal history record information

\* \* \*

E. If the criminal history record information reported by the bureau to the board does not provide grounds for disqualification of

the applicant for licensure under in accordance with the applicable law administered by the board, the board shall have the authority to forward the applicant's fingerprints and such other identifying information as may be required to the FBI with a request for a search of national criminal history record information relative to the applicant.

\* \* \*

§2356.2. Provisional licensed psychologist; renewal; continuing education

\* \* \*

C.(1) A provisional licensed psychologist shall be eligible for renewal of licensure without regard to any subsequent changes in the requirements for licensure upon payments of the fees established under provided for in R.S. 37:2354 and compliance with the requirements established pursuant to this Subsection. A provisional license may be renewed a maximum of three times.

\* \* \*

§2356.3. Specialist in school psychology; licensure; scope of practice

A.

\* \* \*

(2) If the board reasonably believes that a person applying for a license or for a renewal of a license is not physically and mentally competent to render psychological services with reasonable skill and safety to his patients, or is afflicted with a disease or condition, either physical or mental, that would impair his competency to render psychological services, the board may request that the person submit to a physical examination by a medical doctor approved by the board or a mental health examination by a psychologist or psychiatrist approved by the board. If the person refuses to submit to the examination, the board, after contradictory hearing and upon finding reasonable cause, may issue an order requiring the person to submit to the physical or mental health examination. A person who is ordered to submit to a physical or mental health examination shall not be eligible for licensure or renewal of license prior to such examination. Proceedings under pursuant to this Paragraph shall be conducted in compliance with the Administrative Procedure Act.

\* \* \*

§2357. Renewal of license

A.(1) Persons licensed as psychologists under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter shall be eligible for renewal of licensure without regard to any subsequent changes in the requirements for licensure upon payment of the fees established under provided for in R.S. 37:2354 and compliance with the requirement established pursuant to requirements of Paragraph (2) of this Subsection.

(2) The board shall establish continuing education requirements to be fulfilled prior to the renewal of a license. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall cause the license to lapse. For a period of two years from the date of lapse of the license, the license may be renewed upon proof of fulfilling all continuing education requirements applicable through the date of reinstatement and upon payment of all fees due under as required by R.S. 37:2354.

B.(1) Persons licensed as a specialist in school psychology under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter shall be eligible for renewal of licensure without regard to any subsequent changes in the requirements for licensure upon payment of fees



required by this Chapter and compliance with the provisions of this Subsection.

\* \* \*

§2359. Denial, revocation, or suspension of license; psychologist; provisional license; specialist in school psychology

A. A psychologist and anyone under the supervision of a psychologist shall conduct ~~their~~ his activities in conformity with ethical and professional standards promulgated by the board ~~under~~ pursuant to its current rules and regulations.

\* \* \*

C.(1) Proceedings for disciplinary action or for the denial or withholding of a license or provisional license ~~under~~ pursuant to the authority of this Section shall be conducted in compliance with the Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq. The board may require a person against whom it has taken disciplinary action, after hearing or informal resolution, to pay reasonable costs of the proceedings incurred by the board for hearing and any judicial review in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. These costs shall be paid no later than ninety days after the adjudication by the board becomes final. No license or provisional license shall be issued, reinstated, or renewed until such costs have been paid.

\* \* \*

F. A person who has been refused a license or provisional license, or whose license has been revoked, ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Section; may reapply for licensure after more than two years have elapsed from the date such denial or revocation is legally effective.

\* \* \*

§2360. Violation and penalties

A. ~~It~~ Each of the following shall be a misdemeanor:

(1) For any person not licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter or Part VI of Chapter 15 of this Title to represent himself as a psychologist; ~~or~~

(2) For any person not licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter or Part VI of Chapter 15 of this Title to engage in the practice of psychology; ~~or~~

(3) Except for medical psychologists duly licensed by the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners, for any person to represent himself as a psychologist during the time that his license as a psychologist ~~shall be~~ is suspended, ~~or~~ revoked, ~~or~~ lapsed; ~~or~~

(4) For any person to otherwise violate the provisions of this Chapter.

B. ~~Such~~ A misdemeanor described in Subsection A of this Section shall be prosecuted by the district attorney of the judicial district in which the offense was committed in the name of the people of the state of Louisiana.

C. ~~Such~~ A misdemeanor described in Subsection A of this Section shall be punishable upon conviction by imprisonment for not more than six months; or by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars nor more than five hundred dollars, or by both ~~such fine and imprisonment~~. Each violation shall be deemed a separate offense.

§2361. Injunctive proceedings

\* \* \*

D. In case of violation of any injunction issued ~~under~~ pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the court may summarily try and punish the offender for contempt of court.

E. ~~Such~~ The injunctive proceedings provided for in this Section shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all penalties and other remedies as provided in this Chapter.

§2362. Advertisement of psychological services

The board may promulgate regulations to prohibit deceptive advertisements and representations concerning psychological services and ~~the board~~ may enforce this Section and its regulations ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 37:2361.

§2363. Privileged communications

A. In judicial proceedings, whether civil, criminal, or juvenile, legislative and administrative proceedings, and proceedings preliminary and ancillary thereto, a patient or client, or his legal representative, may refuse to disclose or prevent the disclosure of confidential information, including information contained in administrative records, communicated to a psychologist or a licensed specialist in school psychology licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, or persons reasonably believed by the patient or client to be so licensed, or to their employees or other persons under their supervision, for the purpose of diagnosis, evaluation, or treatment of any mental or emotional condition or disorder.

\* \* \*

§2365. Scope of Chapter

A. Members of other professions ~~which~~ who are licensed or certified ~~under~~ in accordance with the laws of this state shall be permitted to render services consistent with their professional training and code of ethics; ~~provided~~ if they do not represent themselves as psychologists or their work as psychological. The provisions of this Subsection shall not apply to those persons duly licensed as medical psychologists by the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners.

B. Duly ordained clergy and Christian Science practitioners shall be permitted to function in their ministerial capacity ~~provided~~ if they do not represent themselves as psychologists, or their work as psychological, unless they have been licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter or Part VI of Chapter 15 of this Title.

C. The following persons may engage in activities defined as the practice of psychology; ~~provided~~ if they do not represent themselves by any title which incorporates the word "psychologist" and ~~provided~~ they perform their activities under the supervision and functional authority of a psychologist licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, subject to ~~applicable~~ ~~in~~ accordance with regulations promulgated by the board:

\* \* \*

(2) An individual pursuing post-doctoral training or experience in psychology, including persons seeking to fulfill the requirements for licensure ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

(3) An assistant who is qualified ~~under~~ in accordance with regulations promulgated by the board and who is employed by, or otherwise directly accountable to, a psychologist licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

\* \* \*

§2366. Drugs; medicine

Except as provided in Part II of this Chapter, nothing in this Chapter shall be construed as permitting a psychologist licensed under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter to administer or prescribe drugs, or in any manner engage in the practice of medicine as defined by the laws of this state.

§2367. Orders to nurses

Notwithstanding any law, or rule, or regulation to the contrary, including but not limited to the provisions of Chapter 11 of Title 37 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 this Title, it shall be considered to be within the scope of the practice of nursing as defined in Chapter 11 of said Title 37 this Title for a registered nurse, licensed practical nurse, and any other healthcare provider licensed under in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 11 of Title 37 this Title to execute and effectuate any order or direction otherwise within the scope of the practice of said health care that healthcare provider when that the order is within the scope of practice of psychology and given to him by a psychologist licensed under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter and, when given in an institutional setting, the order is within the scope of the privileges granted to the psychologist by that institution.

\* \* \*

§2441. Registration and licensing required

In order to protect the public welfare, aid the Department of Revenue in collecting sales taxes on labor and on retail prices of hearing aids, and material used in the service and maintenance of hearing aids; to protect privately owned property and to provide an adequate supply of licensed dealers throughout the state by the establishment of the apprenticeship training program by the board; any person rendering or offering to render services for the sale, maintenance, and repair of any type of hearing aid as defined in R.S. 37:2442 shall hereafter be required to be registered and licensed as hereinafter provided in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, and it shall be unlawful for any person to engage in or offer to engage in the state hearing aid sales and repair service as defined in R.S. 37:2442 unless duly registered and licensed in accordance with this Chapter or as an audiologist under in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 34 of Title 37 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 this Title; that there is hereby created a board to be known as the Louisiana Board for Hearing Aid Dealers.

§2442. Definitions

The following words or and phrases, when used in this Chapter, shall have the following meanings:

\* \* \*

(6) "Unethical conduct" includes but is not limited to the following:

\* \* \*

(r) Sharing of any profits or sharing of any percentage of a licensee's income with any person, firm, corporation, or other business enterprise other than a person licensed to fit and sell hearing aids under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter who is a resident of this state and associated with the licensee in fitting and selling hearing aids.

\* \* \*

(t) Representing or implying that a hearing aid is or will be custom made, "made to order," "prescription made," "made to order", "prescription made", or in any other sense specially fabricated for an individual person when such is not the case.

\* \* \*

§2447. Scope of examination

The examination provided in R.S. 37:2446 shall consist of tests of knowledge in the areas of hearing testing and other areas to determine capability of fitting and selling hearing aids. The tests under provided for in this Section shall not include questions requiring a formal college, medical, surgical, or audiological education. The examination shall be determined and proctored by the Louisiana Board for Hearing Aid Dealers.

\* \* \*

§2449. Temporary training permit

A. An applicant who fulfills the requirements of R.S. 37:2445 and who has not previously applied to take the examination provided under for in R.S. 37:2446 may apply to the board for a temporary training permit.

\* \* \*

C. No temporary training permit shall be issued by the board under pursuant to this Section unless the applicant shows to the satisfaction of the board that he is or will be supervised and trained by a person, hereinafter "sponsor", who holds a valid license or certificate of endorsement issued under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

D. If a person who holds a temporary training permit issued under in accordance with the provisions of this Section does not take the next required examination given after the date of issue, the temporary training permit shall not be renewed, except for good cause shown to the satisfaction of the board.

E. If a person who holds a temporary training permit issued under in accordance with the provisions of this Section takes and fails to pass the next required examination given after the date of issue, the board may renew the temporary training permit for a period ending thirty days after the conclusion of the next examination given. In no event shall more than one renewal be permitted. The fee for renewal shall be seventy-five dollars.

§2449.1. Guidelines for training of temporary training permit holders

\* \* \*

C. The training period begins shall begin on the date of the issuance of the temporary permit. A temporary training permit holder must shall complete at least one hundred fifty hours of directly supervised practicum that includes:

\* \* \*

E. On completion of the directly supervised practicum required under by the provisions of Subsection C of this Section, the temporary training permit holder shall continue the permit holder's training under the direct supervision of the permit holder's sponsor or co-sponsor.

\* \* \*

§2453. Revocation or suspension of license or certificate; grounds

Any person registered under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter may have his license or certificate revoked or suspended for a fixed period to be determined by the board for any of the following causes:

\* \* \*

(2) By securing a license or certificate ~~under~~ provided for in this Chapter through fraud or deceit.

\* \* \*

§2457. Powers and duties of board

The powers and duties of the Louisiana Board for Hearing Aid Dealers are as follows:

\* \* \*

(4) To purchase and maintain or rent audiometric equipment and facilities necessary to carry out the examination of applicants for ~~license~~ licensure.

(5) To issue and renew licenses and ~~certificate~~ certificates of endorsement.

\* \* \*

(7) To appoint representatives to conduct or supervise the examination of applicants for ~~license~~ licensure.

(8) To designate the time and place for examining applicants for ~~license~~ licensure.

\* \* \*

(10) To require the periodic inspection and calibration of audiometric testing equipment and to carry out the periodic inspection of facilities of persons licensed ~~under~~ in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

\* \* \*

§2462. Notice and hearing on revocation or suspension

Any person whose license or temporary training permit is sought to be revoked or suspended ~~under~~ pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter shall be given thirty days notice, in writing, enumerating the charges and specifying a date for public hearing thereon. The hearing shall be held in the parish where the person's business is conducted. The board may issue subpoenas, compel the attendance and testimony of witnesses, and place them under oath, in the same manner as in a district court in the parish where the hearing takes place.

\* \* \*

§2464. Application of Chapter; exceptions

A. This Chapter ~~does shall~~ not apply to a person while he is engaged in the fitting of hearing aids, provided it if that activity is part of the academic curriculum of an accredited institution of higher education or part of a program conducted by a public, tax-supported institution or agency or nonprofit organization, unless such person, or institution, or agency sells hearing aids, and/or or accessories, except earmolds.

B. This Chapter shall not apply to any physician or surgeon licensed ~~under the Louisiana State Medical Practice Act,~~ in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 37:1261; et seq.

C. This Chapter shall not apply to ~~a person holding a certificate of clinical competence in audiology awarded by the American Speech-Language-Hearing Association and licensed as an any audiologist licensed by the Louisiana Board of Examiners For Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology.~~

§2465. Licensing requirements; applicability; ~~exceptions~~

A. Any person who owns, maintains, or operates an office or place of business in which the person employs or engages under

contract a person who practices the selling and fitting of hearing aids is considered to be practicing the selling and fitting of hearing aids ~~under~~ as provided in this Chapter and is required to be licensed under in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

B. If the person who owns, maintains, or operates an office or place of business ~~under~~ described in Subsection A of this Section is a partnership, each partner shall be licensed as provided by this Section. If the person who owns, maintains, or operates an office or place of business under described in Subsection A of this Section is a corporation or other legal entity, the chief executive officer of the corporation or legal entity shall be licensed as provided by this Chapter.

C.(1) All persons licensed ~~under~~ pursuant to the requirements of this Section shall file annually on or before the first day of the calendar year with the board a list of all licensed hearing aid dealers directly or indirectly employed by it, and shall also file with the board a statement on a form approved by the board that it submits itself to the rules and regulations of the board and the provisions of this Chapter, and shall register with the board its intention to engage in the selling and fitting of hearing aids or accessories, provided that the above is completed prior to such organization selling or offering for sale hearing aids or accessories.

\* \* \*

AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 22, line 23, after "39.1(A)(introductory paragraph)," and before "75(A)," insert "50(C),"

AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 22, line 28, after "1223.3," and before "2017.10," insert "2012.2, 2012.3,"

AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 22, line 29, after "(3)(i)," and before "2166.5(B)(12)(e)(introductory paragraph)" insert "2109(E)(2), 2113.2, 2120.33(introductory paragraph) and (7)(introductory paragraph) and (a),"

AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 23, delete lines 1 and 2 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"and (ii), 2180.25(B)(2)(m)(v) and (q), and 2193.1(B)(5)(introductory paragraph) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:"

AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 28, between lines 6 and 7, insert the following:

"§50. Issuance of death certificates; duties of state registrar

\* \* \*

C. A local registrar may issue certified copies of any death certificate during the ten day period it is retained by him, and the certification of the local registrar shall have the same legal effect as certification by the state registrar, as otherwise provided by law. The local registrar shall forward each death certificate to the state registrar on the tenth day after the certificate is filed with him. Each month the state registrar shall notify each parish registrar of voters as to the name, address, and age of each resident of that parish over eighteen years of age for whom a death certificate has been received.

\* \* \*

AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 33, line 22, delete "shall"

AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 35, between lines 12 and 13, insert the following:

"§2012.2. Admission of pay patients; disposition of proceeds

Patients suffering with tuberculosis who are able to pay for hospitalization in a hospital operated by the department shall reimburse the hospital for expenses of their hospitalization, medical services, drugs, and medicines at rates to be fixed by the department, and the proceeds of fees paid by such patients shall be transmitted to the state treasurer in accordance with state laws.

§2012.3. Transportation of indigent patients to hospital; expenses

A. Upon being shown the certificate of the superintendent of the hospital entitling an indigent tuberculosis patient to admission to a state owned tuberculosis hospital, the parish sheriff shall arrange for the transportation of the patient to such hospital.

B. The sheriff may collect from the parish five cents per mile for the distance the patient is transported from the parish to the hospital designated. Where more than one patient is transported at a time, the sheriff shall receive five cents a per mile for each patient transported. This five cents per mile shall be made to cover any means of transportation, sleeping accommodations, and sustenance of patients during their transportation. In addition to the above these amounts, the sheriff may collect for his own expenses an additional five cents per mile for each mile traveled in transporting the patient or patients to the hospital and in returning. The sheriff shall take the most direct route possible in going to and returning from the hospital. If any parish fails or refuses to pay the transportation charges to any sheriff justly entitled to them, the sheriff may proceed by summary writ of mandamus in the district court, without cost, against the governing authority of the parish to enforce payment."

AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 37, between lines 17 and 18, insert the following:

"§2109. Rules, regulations, and minimum standards

\* \* \*

E.

\* \* \*

(2) However, the provisions of this Subsection shall not be construed to authorize the secretary to close any hospital without approval as otherwise provided by law.

\* \* \*

§2113.2. Rules, regulations, and contracts

The Louisiana Department of Health shall prescribe rules and regulations to govern the necessary contracts, agreements, and financial arrangements to properly conduct training and research programs. Such rules and regulations shall govern contracts and agreements with colleges and universities, both publicly and privately owned, within the state for the purpose of promoting research and training in relation to illnesses of all types. All rules, regulations, and contracts adopted under the former authority of R.S. 46:663.2 are continued in effect and made subject to the provisions herein enacted.

\* \* \*

§2120.33. Definitions

As used in this Part, the following definitions shall apply unless the content clearly states terms have the meaning ascribed in this Section unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

\* \* \*

(7) "Cognitive rehabilitation" means a systematic, functionally oriented service of therapeutic cognitive activities based on an assessment and an understanding of the behavior of a client. Services are directed to achieve functional improvement by either any of the following methods:

(a) Reinforcing, strengthening, or re-establishing previously learned patterns of behavior; or

\* \* \*\*

AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 38, between lines 16 and 17, insert the following:

"§2193.1. Purpose and definitions

\* \* \*

B. For purposes of this Part, the following definitions apply:

\* \* \*

(5) "Pediatric day health care facility" means a facility that may operate seven days a week, not to exceed twelve hours a day, to provide care for medically fragile children under the age of twenty-one, including technology dependent technology-dependent children who require close supervision. Care and services to be provided by the pediatric day health care facility shall include but shall not be limited to:

\* \* \*\*

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 38, line 19, after "(B)(1)," and before "1933(B)," insert "977, 1906(C),"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 40, between lines 22 and 23, insert the following:

"§977. Vaccinations for certain juveniles in state custody

The office of public health shall be responsible for providing and dispensing the Hepatitis hepatitis B vaccine, through the Vaccines for Children Program, to children between the ages of twelve and nineteen who have been placed in the custody of the division of youth services of the Department of Public Safety and Corrections.

\* \* \*

§1906. Delinquents and children in need of services; custody, supervision, services

\* \* \*

C. With respect to children between the ages of twelve and nineteen who have been placed in the custody of the local juvenile detention facility, each child shall be immunized with the Hepatitis hepatitis B vaccine during the intake process at any state or nonstate owned nonstate-owned facility. The Vaccines for Children Program through the office of public health shall be responsible for providing and dispensing the Hepatitis hepatitis B vaccine to each facility as

provided for in R.S. 46:977. The office of public health shall utilize the Louisiana Immunization Network for Kids (LINKS) to track the Hepatitis hepatitis B vaccination, as well as all other vaccinations given to juveniles while in the custody of local juvenile detention facilities. Detainees released before completion of the series of three immunizations shall be referred to health units or other providers for completion of the series of doses.

\* \* \*

#### AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 44, delete line 1 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"Section 7. R.S. 37:2465(D), R.S. 40:5.5(F) and (G) and 1249.1(A) and (B), and Section 4 of Act No."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 44, line 4, after "comprising" and before "R.S. 40:1061.9," insert "R.S. 37:1026.3 and 2833 and"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 44, line 5, after "1105.1," and before "and 2120.2." insert "1300.32,"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 44, at the end of the page, insert the following:

"Section 9. The Louisiana State Law Institute is hereby authorized and directed to redesignate Part XII of Chapter 5-B of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 40:1123.1 through 1123.4, as Part V of Chapter 5-G of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 40:1300.41 through 1300.44, and is further directed to retain the heading of the Part."

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

#### **HOUSE BILL NO. 315—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE TURNER  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:1960.1, relative to students with disabilities; relative to public school governing authorities; relative to certain publicly funded programs; to create the Blind and Visually Impaired Child's Bill of Rights; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

#### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 315 by Representative Turner

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 27, after "Education" and before "and" delete "Plan" and insert "Program"

On motion of Rep. Harris, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

#### **HOUSE BILL NO. 325—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI  
AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 42:29(G), relative to public meetings; to provide relative to the authority of the State Bond Commission to hold periodic meetings via electronic means.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

#### **HOUSE BILL NO. 333—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BRASS  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:2926(A)(4), relative to curricula; to provide for advising of students; to provide for the scheduling of advanced courses; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

#### **HOUSE BILL NO. 365—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE SEABAUGH  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:95.1(D) and to enact R.S. 14:2(B)(29) and 95.1(E), relative to crimes of violence; to create the crime of possession of firearm or carrying concealed weapon by a person convicted of certain felonies a crime of violence; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

#### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 365 by Representative Seabaugh

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

Delete Amendment Set #1531 previously adopted by the House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice on March 23, 2022.

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 2, after "felonies" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and delete line 3 in its entirety and insert "and while committing any offense enumerated in this Section."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, delete lines 8 through 14 in their entirety and insert the following:

"D. If any crime used as a predicate offense under this Section is a crime of violence as defined by R.S. 14:2(B) and the offender uses, possesses, or has under his immediate control any firearm while

committing another offense as defined in R.S. 14:2(B), a conviction under this Subsection shall be designated as a crime of violence."

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 411—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMAS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 42:1119(B)(2)(a)(v), relative to nepotism; to provide relative to family members of school board members and school district superintendents who are employed by the school board; to provide relative to promotion of such employees; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 417—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HILFERTY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:436.1(K)(1) and to enact R.S. 17:407.50.2, relative to licensed early learning centers and public elementary and secondary schools; to provide with respect to anaphylaxis training; to provide with respect to the administration of medication; to authorize the maintenance of a supply of auto-injectable epinephrine; to provide for definitions; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 417 by Representative Hilferty

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, between "To" and "enact" insert "amend and reenact R.S. 17:436.1(K)(1) and to"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 2, after "centers" delete the semicolon ";" and insert "and public elementary and secondary schools; to provide with respect to anaphylaxis training;"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 7, between "Section 1." and "R.S." insert "R.S. 17:436.1(K)(1) is hereby amended and reenacted and"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 16, after "nurse" delete the remainder of the line and insert a comma "," and insert "a licensed medical physician,"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 17, after "or" and before "in" delete "state-approved training course" and insert "an anaphylaxis training organization"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, line 18, between "epinephrine." and "The" insert "Such training may be considered continuing education and be applied to the early learning center's annual continuing education requirements."

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, line 2, after "location." delete the remainder of the line and at the beginning of line 3, delete "physician" and insert "A healthcare professional authorized to prescribe medications"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, at the beginning of line 8, delete "(3)" and insert "(3)(a)"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 2, between lines 10 and 11, insert the following:

"(b) For the purposes of this Section, an anaphylaxis training organization is a nationally recognized organization that provides anaphylaxis education or a training program whose leadership includes a physician authorized to practice medicine and surgery or osteopathic medicine and surgery and who is board-certified in allergy and immunology as that designation is issued by a medical specialty certifying board recognized by the American Board of Medical Specialties or American Osteopathic Association."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 2, line 20, after "(4)" and before "anaphylaxis" delete "A state-recognized" and insert "An"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 2, after line 20, insert the following:

\* \* \*

§436.1. Administration of medication; definition; conditions; restrictions; exceptions

\* \* \*

K.(1) Notwithstanding any provision of law or any rule, regulation, or policy to the contrary, the governing authority of each public elementary and secondary school shall adopt a policy authorizing a school nurse or trained school employee to administer auto-injectable epinephrine, as defined in Subparagraph (J)(4)(a) of this Section, to a student who the school nurse or trained school employee, in good faith, professionally believes is having an anaphylactic reaction, whether or not such student has a prescription for epinephrine. At least one employee at each school shall receive training from an anaphylaxis training organization, a registered nurse, or a licensed medical physician in the administration of auto-injectable epinephrine. The school nurse or trained employee may administer the auto-injectable epinephrine to respond to a student's anaphylactic reaction, under a standing protocol from a physician licensed to practice medicine in the state. For the purposes of this Paragraph, an anaphylaxis training organization means a nationally recognized organization that provides anaphylaxis education or a training program whose leadership includes a physician authorized to practice medicine and surgery or osteopathic medicine and surgery and who is board-certified in allergy and immunology as that designation is issued by a medical specialty certifying board

recognized by the American Board of Medical Specialties or American Osteopathic Association."

On motion of Rep. Harris, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 456—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE NELSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 24:31, relative to legislative per diem payments; to allow certain members of the legislature to receive per diem payments as non-taxable travel allowances rather than compensation; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 475—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMAS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 42:1119(B)(2)(a)(iii), relative to nepotism; to provide relative to family members of school board members and school district superintendents who are employed by the school board; to provide relative to the deadline for disclosing information regarding such employment to the Board of Ethics; to provide relative to penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 478—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE FONTENOT  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:41(C)(1)(f), relative to disclosure of records; to provide for the disclosure of records or issuance of certificates to an agent for the surety of a person who is the party to a criminal bail bond; to provide relative to proper documentation; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 497—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES TURNER, ROBBY CARTER, AND COX  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:1250, relative to regulation of pharmacists and pharmacies by the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy; to provide relative to facilities which engage solely in the distribution of drugs or other products necessary for home kidney dialysis for patients with end stage renal disease; to exempt such facilities from the provisions of the Louisiana Pharmacy Practice Act; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 501—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE DUBUISSON  
AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the transfer of certain state property in St. Tammany Parish; to provide for the property descriptions; to provide terms and conditions; to provide for the reservation of mineral interests; to provide terms and conditions; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 525—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MCCORMICK  
AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the transfer of certain state property in Caddo Parish; to provide for property descriptions; to provide for the reservation of mineral rights; to provide terms and conditions; to provide for termination of authority; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 529—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BROWN  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:3, 1921(A), (C), and (D), 1922(A), 1926, 1928(A)(introductory paragraph), 1929(A), 2132(G)(2), 2161(J), 2171(L), R.S. 36:681(C), 683, 687, 689, and 691.1, to enact R.S. 36:681(D), 686(C)(3) and (4), and 694.1, and to repeal R.S. 36:686(D) and (E), relative to the organization of the Department of Insurance; to provide for the offices within and officers for the department; to provide for the administration of certain commissions within the department; to provide for the chief deputy commissioner of the department; to create the office of policy, innovation, and research; to provide the duties and functions of the office and the deputy commissioner of policy, innovation, and research; to make technical changes; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 529 by Representative Brown

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, delete line 12, and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"authority ~~herein~~ granted pursuant to this Part or when such reports or information are provided to or"

# Page 24 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

## AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, line 28, delete "herein" and insert "in this Section"

## AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 5, line 12, delete "herein" and insert in lieu thereof "in this Section"

## AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 5, line 24, delete "herein" and insert in lieu thereof "in this Section"

## AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 6, line 20, after "commissioner" and before "appointed" insert "of insurance"

## AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 6, at the end of line 21, insert "of insurance"

## AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 7, line 29, after "commissioner" and before the period "." insert "of insurance"

## AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 8, line 6, after "commissioner" and before the period "." insert "of insurance"

## AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 8, line 15, after "commissioner" and before the period "." insert "of insurance"

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 530—** BY REPRESENTATIVE MIGUEZ AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the transfer of certain state property in Iberia and St. Martin Parish; to provide for property descriptions; to provide for the reservation of mineral rights; to provide terms and conditions; to provide for an expiration of authority; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 545—** BY REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:821(B)(29), 1551(A) and (B), the heading of Subpart B of Part I of Chapter 5 of Title 22 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, R.S. 22:1581(B)(1), 1808.2(C)(6) and (E), and 1808.6(A) and (B) and to repeal R.S. 22:513(B)(6), 1545(C), 1546(A)(4), 1571, 1574(A)(4),

1808.2(C)(1) through (5), and 1808.3(4), relative to preclicensing requirements for insurance producers; to repeal the preclicensing requirement for certain persons; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 545 by Representative Wright

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 16, delete "of insurance"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, line 2, delete "of insurance"

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 548—** BY REPRESENTATIVES FREEMAN, MOORE, AND SCHLEGEL AND SENATORS BARROW AND MIZELL AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3921.4, relative to digital devices in public schools; to require the state Department of Education to develop health and safety guidelines for the use of digital devices in public schools; to require collaboration with the Louisiana Department of Health and others in developing the guidelines; to provide for the content of the guidelines; to require the state Department of Education to distribute the guidelines to public school governing authorities; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 548 by Representative Freeman

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 5, after "and" and before "in" delete "professional medical societies" and insert "others"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 13, after "and" and before "shall" delete "professional medical societies," and insert "and medical practitioners in relevant specialties such as ophthalmology, optometry, childhood obesity, heart disease, sleep occupational therapy, kinesiology, and ergonomics as well as parents, teachers, and school administrators,"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 19, after "on" and before "digital" insert "school-issued"



AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 1, after "classroom" and before "appropriate" delete the comma "," and insert "and at home."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, after line 3, insert the following:

"C. The department shall review the guidelines at least once annually and revise them based on updated medical information, as needed. The department shall distribute revised guidelines to each public school governing authority.

Section 2. The state Department of Health shall distribute guidelines to public school governing authorities pursuant to R.S. 17:3291.4(A) as enacted by this Act not later than January 1, 2023.

Section 3. This Act shall become effective upon signature by the governor or, if not signed by the governor, upon expiration of the time for bills to become law without signature by the governor, as provided by Article III, Section 18 of the Constitution of Louisiana. If vetoed by the governor and subsequently approved by the legislature, this Act shall become effective on the day following such approval."

On motion of Rep. Harris, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 550—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE EMERSON  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3996(I), relative to elementary and secondary education; to provide relative to student learning pods; to provide relative to policies and procedures; to provide relative to domicile; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Harris, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 627—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BRYANT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:68.4(B), relative to the crime of unauthorized use of a motor vehicle; to provide relative to criminal penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 627 by Representative Bryant

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete lines 8 through 17 in their entirety and insert the following:

~~"B. Whoever commits the crime of unauthorized use of a motor vehicle shall be fined not more than five thousand dollars or imprisoned with or without hard labor for not more than two years or both imprisoned for not more than six months, or may be fined not more than one thousand dollars, or both. If the offender in such cases has been convicted of unauthorized use of a motor vehicle two or more times previously, upon any subsequent conviction he shall be imprisoned, with or without hard labor, for not more than two years, or may be fined not more than two thousand dollars, or both."~~

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 679—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUPLESSIS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 42:1111(E)(2)(d), relative to ethics; to provide relative to certain required statements regarding assistance in connection with certain transactions; to provide for the time period for certain actions by the Board of Ethics regarding such statements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 691—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE EMERSON  
AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the exchange of certain state property in St. Martin Parish; to provide for property descriptions; to provide for the reservation of mineral rights; to provide terms and conditions; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 692—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE LARVADAIN  
AN ACT

To enact Part IX of Chapter 11 of Title 22 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 22:2188.1 through 2188.5, relative to the Named Storm Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority; to provide for definitions; to create and provide for the powers of the authority; to provide for the membership of the authority's board of directors; to create and provide for the Named Storm Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority Fund; to provide for the authority's plan of operations; to require and provide for annual reporting from the authority; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

# Page 26 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

## HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 692 by Representative Larvadain

### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 3, between lines 20 and 21, insert the following:

"(20) A representative of the American Property Casualty Insurance Association.

(21) A representative of the Consumer Federation of America."

### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 6, line 7, after "the" and before "unless" change "fund" to "fund."

### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 7, line 12, after "annually" and before "House" insert "to the"

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

Under the rules, the above bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and recommitted to the Committee on Appropriations.

### **HOUSE BILL NO. 693—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 27:3(13)(i) and 27(A)(introductory paragraph) and (1), relative to the Gaming Control Law; to provide relative to the definition of "institutional investors"; to provide relative to the criteria for suitability for institutional investors; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

### **HOUSE BILL NO. 695—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:456, 1547(F) and (I)(introductory paragraph), 1551(C)(introductory paragraph), (3), and (4), 1564(B)(2), 1573(C), (E), and (G), 1575(A)(1), and 1808.4(A)(2), relative to insurance producers and consultants; to provide for appointments of producers; to provide for technical corrections relative to exemptions from examinations, licensing, and continuing education of producers and consultants; to modify terminology relative to accident and health insurance; to provide for technical changes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

## HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 695 by Representative Wright

### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, delete "1545(C)(2) and (4) through (6)."

### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 4, delete "1571(E)(1)."

### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, delete line 5 in its entirety and at the beginning of line 6, delete "paragraph), (5), and (6)."

### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 8, delete "examination" and insert "exemptions from examinations"

### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 12, delete "1545(C)(2) and (4) through (6)."

### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, line 13, delete "1571(E)(1)."

### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 1, line 14, after "1575(A)(1)," delete the remainder of the line and at the beginning of line 15, delete "paragraph), (4)(introductory paragraph), and (5), (6)."

### AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, line 25, after "business entity" delete the remainder of the line and delete lines 26 through 28 in their entirety and insert "actively engaged in soliciting, negotiating, or effecting contracts of insurance or renewals thereof also hold an active producer license issued in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 22:1541 et seq. and are registered pursuant to R.S. 22:1546(B)."

### AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, line 3, delete "this Subpart" and insert "R.S. 22:1541 et seq."

### AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 3, delete lines 24 through 27 in their entirety

### AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 4, delete lines 1 through 21 in their entirety

### AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 5, line 12, delete "licensed" and insert "for a license"

### AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 5, line 16, delete "licensed" and insert "for a license"

### AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 5, line 24, delete "written instruction of the insured" and insert "written instruction of the owner of the policy or the first-named insured"

### AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 5, delete line 25 in its entirety and insert "such contracts contract during the term of such contract or until the"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 6, delete lines 1 through 10 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 7, delete lines 23 through 26 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 8, delete lines 1 through 21 in their entirety

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 700—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BAGLEY  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:966.1, relative to marijuana; to provide relative to penalties for possession of marijuana for persons under eighteen years of age; to provide relative to penalties for the possession of certain amounts; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 700 by Representative Bagley

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 8, after "this" and before "to" change "title" to "Title"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, at the beginning of line 14, insert "or"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 5, after "imprisonment" and before "with" insert a comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 6, after "labor" and before "for" insert a comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, after line 6, add the following:

"B. Any person under eighteen years of age who is a patient of the state-sponsored medical marijuana program in Louisiana and possesses medical marijuana in a form permissible under R.S. 40:1046 for a condition enumerated therein shall not be subject to the provisions of this Section."

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 706—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:40.1 and 107.2(A) and to enact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 814(A)(69), relative to the crime of terrorizing; to create the crime of menacing; to provide for penalties; to provide relative to hate crimes; to add the crime of menacing to the list of hate crimes; to provide for responsive verdicts; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

On motion of Rep. Bacala, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 715—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE GREEN  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:691.2(introductory paragraph), 691.6(D), (M), and (N), and 691.10(A), (C)(1), (3), (4), and (F) and to enact R.S. 22:691.2(13) through (15), 691.6(O) and (P), 691.7(A)(1)(g) through (i) and (6), and 691.10(G), relative to the Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Law; to provide for definitions; to provide for a group capital calculation; to provide for a liquidity stress test; to provide for the continuity of essential services and functions provided by affiliates; to provide for jurisdiction of the receivership court; to provide for a bond or deposit requirement; to provide for the ownership of the records of an insurer; to provide for confidentiality; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 715 by Representative Green

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, delete line 29 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"shall concurrently file, with the registration, an annual group capital calculation as"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 3, line delete lines 19 and 20 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"(c) An insurance holding company system with a supervisor whose group-wide supervisor is not based in the United States and is located within a reciprocal jurisdiction as described in R.S."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, delete line 1 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"(ii) The group-wide supervisor not based in the United States, that is not in a reciprocal"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 4, delete line 7 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

# Page 28 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

"United States operations of any insurance holding company system not based in the United States if,"

## AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 4, line 19, delete "under" and insert in lieu thereof "pursuant to"

## AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 5, line 13, after "the" and before "Financial" insert "NAIC"

## AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 5, line 18, change "framework's" to "framework"

## AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 5, line 20, after "the" and before "Financial" insert "NAIC"

## AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 6, line 13, delete "In any case where" and insert "If"

## AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 6, delete line 26 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"financial condition, as defined in regulations promulgated by the commissioner, or a"

## AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 8, line 10, after "and" and before "be" insert "shall"

## AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 9, delete line 25 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"States Federal Reserve Board and group-wide supervisors not based in the United States."

## AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 10, line 21, after "governing" and before "sharing" insert "the"

## AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 11, line 1, change "or" to "and"

## AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 11, line 8, change "or" to "and"

## AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 11, line 9, delete "or third-party consultant designated" and insert in lieu thereof "or a third-party consultant, designated"

## AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 12, line 9, after "or" and before "by" delete "any"

## AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 12, line 24, change "publication" to "publication,"

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 717—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MCMAHEN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1248.1(6) and 1248.3(1) and (2), relative to financing by the state Medicaid program of health services in certain parishes; to provide with respect to a local healthcare provider participation program; to designate the parishes in which the program may be operated; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Health and Welfare to Original House Bill No. 717 by Representative McMahan

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete lines 13 through 15 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"(6) "Rural institutional provider" means a hospital, other than one defined in R.S. 40:1189.3, that is licensed by the department; ~~has~~; either had no more than sixty hospital beds on November 1, 2020; or existed on November 1, 2020 and has no more than sixty hospital beds; and meets any of the following criteria:"

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bagley, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 729—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUPLESSIS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 44:4.1(B)(38) and to enact R.S. 44:4(64) and Code of Criminal Procedure Article 234, relative to photo identification of an arrested person; to provide for a public records exception; to provide for definitions; to provide relative to the duty of law enforcement; to provide relative to submission of requests; to provide for criminal liability; to provide relative to time periods; to provide relative to attorney fees; to provide relative to civil penalties; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 753—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MIGUEZ

AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the transfer of certain state property in Iberia Parish; to provide for the property description; to provide for the reservation of mineral rights; to provide terms and conditions; to provide for termination of authority; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 762—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 36:610(B)(13), R.S. 56:10(B)(17), and Part VI of Chapter 8 of Title 56 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 56:1931 through 1936, relative to the Louisiana Outdoors Forever Program; to create the Louisiana Outdoors Forever Program and the Louisiana Outdoors Forever Fund; to provide for executive branch organization; to create a project selection board and a technical advisory board; to provide for board membership and duties; to provide for program eligibility and applications; to provide for administrative rules; to provide for program termination; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment to Original House Bill No. 762 by Representative Zeringue

**AMENDMENT NO. 1**

On page 1, line 4, after "to the Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 2**

On page 1, at the end of line 4, change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 3**

On page 1, line 5, after "Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 4**

On page 1, line 18, after "Louisiana" delete the remainder of the line and insert in lieu thereof "Outdoors Forever Program project selection board and technical advisory board (R.S. 56:1931 et seq.)."

**AMENDMENT NO. 5**

On page 2, at the beginning of line 11, change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 6**

On page 2, line 12, after "Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 7**

On page 2, line 24, after "LOUISIANA" and before "FOREVER" change "OUTDOOR" to "OUTDOORS"

**AMENDMENT NO. 8**

On page 2, line 25, after "Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 9**

On page 2, line 27, after "Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 10**

On page 3, line 2, after "Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 11**

On page 5, line 10, after "Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

**AMENDMENT NO. 12**

On page 5, line 18, after "Louisiana" and before "Forever" change "Outdoor" to "Outdoors"

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Third Reading and Final Passage**

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on third reading and final passage were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 221—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MAGEE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 38:2212.1(A)(1)(a) and (b), relative to certain purchases of materials or supplies paid by public funds and publicly bid; to increase the purchasing limit for materials and supplies; to increase the purchasing range requiring quotes for the purchase file; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Magee moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gaines	Miller, D.
Adams	Glover	Miller, G.
Amedee	Goudeau	Mincey
Bacala	Green	Muscarello
Bagley	Harris	Nelson
Beaullieu	Hilferty	Newell
Bishop	Hodges	Orgeron
Bourriaque	Horton	Owen, C.
Brown	Hughes	Owen, R.
Bryant	Huval	Phelps
Butler	Illg	Pierre
Carpenter	Ivey	Pressly
Carrier	Jefferson	Riser
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Romero
Cormier	Johnson, M.	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Johnson, T.	Schlegel
Davis	Jordan	Seabaugh
Deshotel	Kerner	Selders
DeVillier	LaCombe	St. Blanc
DuBuisson	Landry	Stagni
Duplessis	Larvadain	Stefanski
Echols	Lyons	Tarver

Edmonds	Mack	Thomas
Edmonston	Magee	Thompson
Emerson	Marcelle	Turner
Firment	Marino	Villio
Fisher	McCormick	Wheat
Freeman	McFarland	White
Freiberg	McKnight	Willard
Frieman	McMahen	Wright
Gadberry	Miguez	Zeringue

Total - 93

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Boyd	Crews	Geymann
Brass	Farnum	Hollis
Carter, W.	Fontenot	Moore
Cox	Garofalo	

Total - 11

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Magee moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 260—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES MAGEE AND GREEN  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:1800, relative to firearms; to provide for definitions; to provide for limitation of liability; to provide for an exception; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Magee sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Magee to Engrossed House Bill No. 260 by Representative Magee

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, after line 5 insert the following:

"(3) This Section shall not apply to firearm transfers pursuant to the Domestic Violence Prevention Firearm Transfer as provided in Title XXXV of the Code of Criminal Procedure."

On motion of Rep. Magee, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Magee sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Magee to Engrossed House Bill No. 260 by Representative Magee

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 19, after "from" and before "a" delete "or subsequent to"

On motion of Rep. Magee, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Magee moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gaines	Miller, G.
Adams	Glover	Mincey
Amedee	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bagley	Green	Nelson
Beaullieu	Harris	Newell
Bishop	Hilferty	Orgeron
Bourriaque	Hodges	Owen, C.
Brown	Horton	Owen, R.
Bryant	Hughes	Phelps
Butler	Huval	Pierre
Carpenter	Illg	Pressly
Carrier	Ivey	Riser
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Romero
Cormier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Cox	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Crews	Jordan	Selders
Davis	Kerner	St. Blanc
Deshotel	LaCombe	Stagni
DeVillier	Landry	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Tarver
Duplessis	Lyons	Thomas
Echols	Mack	Thompson
Edmonds	Magee	Turner
Edmonston	Marcelle	Villio
Emerson	Marino	Wheat
Firment	McCormick	White
Fisher	McFarland	Willard
Freeman	McKnight	Wright
Freiberg	McMahen	Zeringue
Frieman	Miguez	
Gadberry	Miller, D.	

Total - 94

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bacala	Farnum	Hollis
Boyd	Fontenot	Moore
Brass	Garofalo	
Carter, W.	Geymann	

Total - 10

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Magee moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 337—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES HILFERTY, CORMIER, EDMONSTON, LARVADAIN, ROBERT OWEN, SCHAMERHORN, SELDERS, AND WRIGHT

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1321(S) and to enact R.S. 40:1321(T), relative to a special identification card designation for persons with autism spectrum disorder; to provide for the establishment of an autism spectrum disorder designation on a special identification card; to provide for the criteria for obtaining an autism spectrum disorder designation for new applicants or renewals; to provide penalties for persons making false statements to obtain special designation; to require the implementation of a law enforcement officer training course; to

provide for the promulgation of rules and regulations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Hilferty sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Hilferty to Engrossed House Bill No. 337 by Representative Hilferty

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 1, after "of" and before "a" insert "an applicant for"

On motion of Rep. Hilferty, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Hilferty moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	Miguez
Adams	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bacala	Glover	Mincey
Bagley	Goudeau	Muscarello
Beaullieu	Green	Nelson
Bishop	Harris	Newell
Bourriaque	Hilferty	Orgeron
Brown	Hodges	Owen, C.
Bryant	Horton	Owen, R.
Butler	Hughes	Phelps
Carpenter	Huval	Pierre
Carrier	Illg	Pressly
Carter, R.	Ivey	Riser
Cormier	Jefferson	Romero
Coussan	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Cox	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Crews	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Davis	Jordan	Selders
Deshotel	Kerner	St. Blanc
DeVillier	LaCombe	Stagni
DuBuisson	Landry	Stefanski
Duplessis	Larvadain	Tarver
Echols	Lyons	Thomas
Edmonds	Mack	Thompson
Edmonston	Magee	Turner
Emerson	Marcelle	Villio
Farnum	Marino	Wheat
Firment	McCormick	White
Fisher	McFarland	Willard
Freeman	McKnight	Wright
Freiberg	McMahen	Zeringue
Total - 96		

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Boyd	Fontenot	Hollis
Brass	Garofalo	Moore
Carter, W.	Geymann	
Total - 8		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Hilferty moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 376—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES HUVAL, GREEN, AND WRIGHT AND SENATORS TALBOT AND MCMATH  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:300.5 and to repeal R.S. 32:300.6, 300.7, and 300.8, relative to the prohibition of the use of certain wireless telecommunications devices while operating a motor vehicle; to provide for definitions; to provide for exceptions and penalties; to provide for enforcement and reporting; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Huval, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Huval gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 376 from the calendar on Monday, March 28, 2022.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 389—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE PRESSLY  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Civil Code Articles 3461 and 3472.1, to enact Code of Civil Procedure Article 196.2, and to repeal Code of Civil Procedure Article 562, relative to prescription and peremption; to provide for emergency suspension of certain prescription and peremption periods; to provide for the emergency suspension of abandonment periods; to provide relative to the Louisiana Supreme Court; to provide for emergency extension of certain deadlines; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Pressly sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Pressly to Engrossed House Bill No. 389 by Representative Pressly

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 3, line 1, after "otherwise" and before "during" delete "run" and insert "accrued"

On motion of Rep. Pressly, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Pressly moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	Miguez
Adams	Gaines	Miller, D.

Page 32 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

Amedee	Glover	Miller, G.
Bacala	Goudeau	Mincey
Bagley	Green	Muscarello
Beaullieu	Harris	Nelson
Bishop	Hilferty	Newell
Bourriaque	Hodges	Orgeron
Brown	Horton	Owen, C.
Bryant	Hughes	Owen, R.
Butler	Huval	Phelps
Carpenter	Illg	Pierre
Carrier	Ivey	Pressly
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Riser
Cormier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Crews	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Davis	Jordan	Selders
Deshotel	Kerner	St. Blanc
DeVillier	LaCombe	Stagni
DuBuisson	Landry	Stefanski
Duplessis	Larvadain	Tarver
Echols	Lyons	Thomas
Edmonds	Mack	Thompson
Edmonston	Magee	Turner
Emerson	Marcelle	Villio
Firment	Marino	Wheat
Fisher	McCormick	White
Freeman	McFarland	Willard
Freiberg	McKnight	Zeringue
Frieman	McMahen	

Total - 92

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Boyd	Farnum	Hollis
Brass	Fontenot	Moore
Carter, W.	Garofalo	Romero
Cox	Geymann	Wright

Total - 12

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Pressly moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 450—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE CHARLES OWEN  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Children's Code Articles 1186(A) and 1188(C) and R.S. 40:73(B) and (D), 77(B) and (D), and 79(A)(4) and (D) and to enact R.S. 40:73(E), 77(E), and 79(E), relative to an adopted person's original birth certificate; to provide for the disclosure of confidential records; to provide for the motion for disclosure; to provide for access to an adopted person's original birth certificate; to provide for the authority of the registrar of vital records; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Charles Owen, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Charles Owen gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 450 from the calendar on Monday, March 28, 2022.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 507—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MARINO  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:34.2(2)(e), relative to birth certificates; to provide for the designation of a surname under certain circumstances; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Marino moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gaines	Mincey
Adams	Glover	Muscarello
Amedee	Goudeau	Nelson
Bacala	Green	Newell
Beaullieu	Harris	Orgeron
Bishop	Hilferty	Owen, C.
Bourriaque	Hodges	Owen, R.
Brown	Horton	Phelps
Bryant	Hughes	Pierre
Butler	Huval	Pressly
Carpenter	Illg	Riser
Carrier	Ivey	Romero
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Jenkins	Schlegel
Coussan	Jordan	Seabaugh
Crews	Kerner	Selders
Davis	LaCombe	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Landry	Stagni
DeVillier	Lyons	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Mack	Tarver
Duplessis	Magee	Thomas
Echols	Marcelle	Thompson
Edmonds	Marino	Turner
Edmonston	McCormick	Villio
Emerson	McFarland	Wheat
Firment	McKnight	White
Freeman	McMahen	Willard
Freiberg	Miguez	Wright
Frieman	Miller, D.	Zeringue
Gadberry	Miller, G.	

Total - 89

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bagley	Farnum	Hollis
Boyd	Fisher	Johnson, M.
Brass	Fontenot	Johnson, T.
Carter, W.	Garofalo	Larvadain
Cox	Geymann	Moore

Total - 15

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Marino moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 684—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 4:1, relative to the sale of admission tickets; to require the ticket value to be printed on its face; to provide for a penalty; to authorize the resale of tickets via the



internet pursuant to certain requirements; to provide for certain exceptions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Davis moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	Miller, G.
Adams	Gaines	Mincey
Bacala	Glover	Muscarello
Bagley	Goudeau	Nelson
Beaullieu	Green	Newell
Bishop	Harris	Orgeron
Bourriaque	Hilferty	Owen, C.
Brown	Hodges	Owen, R.
Bryant	Hughes	Phelps
Butler	Huval	Pierre
Carpenter	Illg	Pressly
Carrier	Ivey	Riser
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Romero
Cormier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Cox	Jordan	Seabaugh
Crews	Kerner	Selders
Davis	LaCombe	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Landry	Stagni
DeVillier	Lyons	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Mack	Tarver
Duplessis	Magee	Thomas
Echols	Marcelle	Thompson
Edmonds	Marino	Turner
Edmonston	McCormick	Villio
Emerson	McFarland	Wheat
Firment	McKnight	White
Freeman	McMahen	Willard
Freiberg	Miguez	Wright
Frieman	Miller, D.	Zeringue
Total - 90		

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Amedee	Fisher	Horton
Boyd	Fontenot	Johnson, T.
Brass	Garofalo	Larvadain
Carter, W.	Geymann	Moore
Farnum	Hollis	
Total - 14		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Davis moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 708—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MCFARLAND  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 51:3061(3) and (4) and 3062(6) and (7), relative to the Louisiana Renewable Energy Development Act; to provide for legislative findings; to define the term "biomass"; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. McFarland moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Adams	Gaines	Miller, G.
Amedee	Glover	Mincey
Bacala	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bagley	Green	Nelson
Beaullieu	Harris	Newell
Bishop	Hilferty	Orgeron
Bourriaque	Hodges	Owen, C.
Brown	Horton	Owen, R.
Bryant	Hughes	Phelps
Butler	Huval	Pierre
Carpenter	Illg	Pressly
Carrier	Ivey	Riser
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Romero
Cormier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Crews	Jordan	Seabaugh
Davis	Kerner	Selders
Deshotel	LaCombe	St. Blanc
DeVillier	Landry	Stagni
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Stefanski
Duplessis	Lyons	Tarver
Echols	Mack	Thomas
Edmonds	Magee	Thompson
Edmonston	Marcelle	Turner
Emerson	Marino	Villio
Firment	McCormick	Wheat
Fisher	McFarland	White
Freeman	McKnight	Willard
Freiberg	McMahen	Wright
Frieman	Miguez	Zeringue
Total - 93		

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Boyd	Farnum	Hollis
Brass	Fontenot	Johnson, T.
Carter, W.	Garofalo	Moore
Cox	Geymann	
Total - 11		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. McFarland moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 783—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 8:1(introductory paragraph), (5), (8), (9), (11), and (13) through (40), 67, 70, 76(A) and (B), 78(D), 103, 105, 107, 122(A), 123(B)(introductory paragraph), 131(A), 131.1(A), 132.1(A), 133.1(A), 133.2(B)(introductory paragraph), 135.1(A), 135.2(B)(introductory paragraph), 141, 141.1(C), 141.3(B), (C), (E), and (F), 204, 302(A) through (C), 303, 305 through 307, 308(A) and (C), 311, 314, 316 through 401, 402(introductory paragraph), 403, 404, 407, 408, 411(introductory paragraph), 412(B)(2), 451, 453, 454.1(A), 455, 457 through 459, 459.1(A) and (B), 460, 461(B),

# Page 34 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

465(A)(1)(introductory paragraph), (b), and (c), (2), (4)(h), and (5)(d), (B), and (C), 501(A), 502(A)(1)(a) and (D), 502.2(introductory paragraph) and (5), 503, 504, 505, 505.2(introductory paragraph) and (3), 506(B) and (C)(1), 506.1(A), 507, 508, 601, 604, 605, 606(B), 653(B), 663(B), (C), (D)(2) and (4), (E)(introductory paragraph) and (1), (F)(3), and (G)(4), 673(introductory paragraph), 676(A)(6), (B), and (C), 680(A) and (C), 701 through 705, 706(C), 801, 802(B), (E), and (F), 803, 805 through 809, 813, 901, 902, 903(A) and (B), 903.1, 904, and 905(C) and to enact R.S. 8:1(41) through (44), relative to providing technical corrections for Title 8 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950; to provide for technical corrections; to provide for standardization of language; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Horton, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

## HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Horton on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 783 by Representative Davis

### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 5, line 3, following "(c)" and before "delay" change "The" to "A"

### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 5, line 4, following "subdivisions" and before "in" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 5, line 7, following "controlled" and before the end of the line insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 5, line 9, following "vaults" and before "or" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 5, line 19, following "crypt" and before "or" insert a comma "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 5, line 21, following "chambers" and before the end of the line delete "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 5, line 23, following "below-ground crypts," and before "or" change "westministers" to "Westminster crypts,"

### AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 5, line 25, following "mausoleum" and before the end of the line, change "or lawn crypt" to ", lawn crypt,"

### AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 6, line 2, following "controlled" and before "or" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 6, line 3, following "operate" and before "or" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 6, line 14, following "trust" and before "or" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 6, line 16, following "cemetery" and before "or" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 6, line 22, following "controlled" and before "or" insert "₂" and following "association" and before "or" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 6, line 25, following "association" and before "or" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 7, delete line 24

### AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 9, line 9, at the beginning of the line and before "property" change "real" to "immovable"

### AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 9, line 27, following "commissioners" delete "so"

### AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 10, line 12, following "places" and before "and" delete "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 10, line 21, following "commissioners" delete "so"

### AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 11, line 1, following "commissioners" delete "so"

### AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 11, line 10, following "commissioners" delete "so"

### AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 11, line 25, following "commissioners" delete "so"

### AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 13, line 23, following "restriction" and before "and" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 13, line 26, following "class" and before "and" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 13, line 29, following "structures" and before "and" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 14, line 21, following "elevations" and before "and" insert "₂"

### AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 15, line 8, following "map" and before "or" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 15, line 10, following "map" and before "or" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 15, line 12, following "map" and before "or" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 16, line 13, change "Louisiana Division of Archaeology" to "Department of Culture, Recreation and Tourism, division of archaeology"

AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 17, line 10, following "conditions" and before "and" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 17, line 15, following "unable" and before "to" change "~~after diligent~~" to "after diligent efforts for twenty five years"

AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 17, line 21, following "maintenance" and before "or" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 17, line 29, following "of the" and before "period" change "twenty-five year" to "twenty-five-year"

AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 18, line 3, following "such" and before the end of the line, change "twenty-five year" to "twenty-five-year"

AMENDMENT NO. 36

On page 18, line 5, following "of the" and before "period" change "one year" to "one-year"

AMENDMENT NO. 37

On page 18, line 6, following "such" and before "period" change "one year" to "one-year"

AMENDMENT NO. 38

On page 18, line 20, following "of the" and before "period" change "one year" to "one-year"

AMENDMENT NO. 39

On page 18, line 26, following "firm" and before "or" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 40

On page 18, line 27, change "commission or bonus or rebate" to "commission, bonus, rebate,"

AMENDMENT NO. 41

On page 19, line 14, following "line" and before "or" insert "₂" and following "thoroughfare" delete "," and following "over" and before "or" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 42

On page 19, delete line 23

AMENDMENT NO. 43

On page 20, line 24, following "stability" and before "and" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 44

On page 21, line 10, following "organization" and before "or" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 45

On page 22, line 7, following "1962" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 46

On page 23, line 24, following "1974" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 47

On page 26, line 13, following "or" and before "," change "photo copy" to "photocopy"

AMENDMENT NO. 48

On page 26, line 28, following "has" and before "₂" insert "done any of the following"

AMENDMENT NO. 49

On page 28, lines 11 and 14, delete "so"

AMENDMENT NO. 50

On page 29, line 11, delete "herein" and after "made" insert "pursuant to this Section"

AMENDMENT NO. 51

On page 30, line 10, following "rely ~~thereon~~" and before "the" insert "upon"

AMENDMENT NO. 52

On page 31, line 25, following "entity" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 53

On page 32, line 22, following "lawn crypts" and before "and" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 54

On page 32, line 23, following "be used" and before "or converted" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 55

On page 33, line 17, following "year" and before "may" delete "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 56

On page 37, line 21, following "parish" and before "and" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 57

On page 41, line 1, following "disinterment" and before "or removal" insert "₂"

AMENDMENT NO. 58

On page 42, line 25, following "old" and before "or" insert "₂"

# Page 36 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

## AMENDMENT NO. 59

On page 44, line 4, change "herein" to "in this Section"

On motion of Rep. Horton, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Davis sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

### **HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Davis to Engrossed House Bill No. 783 by Representative Davis

## AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, at the beginning of line 20, delete "Louisiana"

## AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 8, line 3, delete "which" and insert "who"

## AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 8, line 6, after "dollars" and before "whichever" insert a comma ","

## AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 8, line 27, after "shrubbery" and before "and" insert a comma ","

## AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 10, line 3, after "commissioners," delete the remainder of the line

## AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 10, at the beginning of line 4, delete "shall have and"

## AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 11, line 15, after "commissioners," delete the remainder of the line

## AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 11, at the beginning of line 16, delete "shall have and"

## AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 12, line 1, after "commissioners," delete the remainder of the line

## AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 12, at the beginning of line 2, delete "shall have and"

## AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 26, line 4, delete the semi-colon ";" and insert a comma ","

## AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 26, line 14, after the comma "," delete "the appraisal to" and insert "which shall"

## AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 31, line 22, delete the semi-colon ";" and insert a comma ","

## AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 31, delete line 24 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof "(b) Make the books and records shall be made available for examination in the"

On motion of Rep. Davis, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Davis moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

### **ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

#### YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gaines	Miller, G.
Adams	Glover	Mincey
Amedee	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bacala	Green	Nelson
Bagley	Harris	Newell
Beaulieu	Hilferty	Orgeron
Bishop	Hodges	Owen, C.
Bourriaque	Horton	Owen, R.
Brown	Hughes	Phelps
Bryant	Huval	Pierre
Butler	Illg	Pressly
Carpenter	Ivey	Riser
Carrier	Jefferson	Romero
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Coussan	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Crews	Jordan	Selders
Davis	Kerner	St. Blanc
Deshotel	LaCombe	Stagni
DeVillier	Landry	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Tarver
Duplessis	Lyons	Thomas
Echols	Mack	Thompson
Edmonds	Magee	Turner
Edmonston	Marcello	Villio
Emerson	Marino	Wheat
Firment	McCormick	White
Fisher	McFarland	Willard
Freeman	McKnight	Wright
Freiberg	McMahen	Zeringue
Frieman	Miguez	
Gadberry	Miller, D.	
Total - 94		

#### NAYS

Total - 0

#### ABSENT

Boyd	Farnum	Hollis
Brass	Fontenot	Moore
Carter, W.	Garofalo	
Cox	Geymann	
Total - 10		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Davis moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 810—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BROWN

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:463.214, relative to motor vehicle special prestige license plates; to provide for the "International Association of Firefighters" special prestige license plate; to provide for the creation, issuance, design, implementation, fees, distribution, and rule promulgation applicable to such license plate; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Brown moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Adams	Gaines	Miller, G.
Amedee	Glover	Mincey
Bacala	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bagley	Green	Nelson
Beaulieu	Harris	Newell
Bishop	Hilferty	Orgeron
Bourriaque	Hodges	Owen, C.
Brown	Horton	Owen, R.
Bryant	Hughes	Phelps
Butler	Huval	Pierre
Carpenter	Illg	Pressly
Carrier	Ivey	Riser
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Romero
Cormier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Crews	Jordan	Seabaugh
Davis	Kerner	Selders
Deshotel	LaCombe	St. Blanc
DeVillier	Landry	Stagni
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Stefanski
Duplessis	Lyons	Tarver
Echols	Mack	Thomas
Edmonds	Magee	Thompson
Edmonston	Marcelle	Turner
Emerson	Marino	Villio
Firment	McCormick	Wheat
Fisher	McFarland	White
Freeman	McKnight	Willard
Freiberg	McMahen	Wright
Frieman	Miguez	Zeringue

Total - 93

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Boyd	Farnum	Hollis
Brass	Fontenot	Johnson, T.
Carter, W.	Garofalo	Moore
Cox	Geymann	

Total - 11

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Brown moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 822—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:563(introductory paragraph) and (6) and R.S. 40:2831(introductory paragraph) and (1)(b) and to enact R.S. 37:581(B)(6), relative to ear piercing; to exempt ear piercing from certain regulatory requirements; to provide for persons engaged in piercing; to provide requirements for exemption; to make technical changes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Davis sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Davis to Engrossed House Bill No. 822 by Representative Davis

**AMENDMENT NO. 1**

On page 2, line 13, after "use," and before "and made" delete "hallow," and insert "hollow."

**AMENDMENT NO. 2**

On page 3, line 10, after "single-use," and before "and" delete "hallow," and insert "hollow."

On motion of Rep. Davis, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Davis moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Glover	Miller, G.
Adams	Goudeau	Mincey
Amedee	Green	Muscarello
Bacala	Harris	Nelson
Bagley	Hilferty	Orgeron
Beaulieu	Hodges	Owen, C.
Bourriaque	Horton	Owen, R.
Brown	Hughes	Phelps
Butler	Huval	Pierre
Carpenter	Illg	Pressly
Carrier	Ivey	Riser
Cormier	Jefferson	Romero
Coussan	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Crews	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Davis	Jordan	Seabaugh
Deshotel	Kerner	Selders
DeVillier	LaCombe	St. Blanc
DuBuisson	Landry	Stagni
Duplessis	Larvadain	Stefanski
Echols	Lyons	Tarver
Edmonds	Mack	Thomas
Edmonston	Magee	Thompson
Emerson	Marcelle	Turner
Firment	Marino	Villio
Fisher	McCormick	Wheat
Freeman	McFarland	White
Freiberg	McKnight	Willard
Frieman	McMahen	Wright
Gadberry	Miguez	Zeringue
Gaines	Miller, D.	

Total - 89

Page 38 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bishop	Carter, W.	Geymann
Boyd	Cox	Hollis
Brass	Farnum	Johnson, T.
Bryant	Fontenot	Moore
Carter, R.	Garofalo	Newell

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Davis moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 230—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES BISHOP, BEAULLIEU, AND BRYANT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 51:2461, relative to the Louisiana Quality Jobs Program; to extend the deadline for submission of advance notifications for receipt of rebates in the Louisiana Quality Jobs Program; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Bryant moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gaines	Mincey
Adams	Glover	Muscarello
Amedee	Goudeau	Nelson
Bacala	Green	Newell
Bagley	Harris	Orgeron
Beaullieu	Hilferty	Owen, C.
Bishop	Hodges	Owen, R.
Bourriaque	Hughes	Phelps
Brown	Huval	Pierre
Bryant	Illg	Pressly
Butler	Ivey	Riser
Carpenter	Jefferson	Romero
Carrier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Carter, R.	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Cormier	Jordan	Seabaugh
Coussan	Kerner	Selders
Crews	LaCombe	St. Blanc
Davis	Landry	Stagni
Deshotel	Larvadain	Stefanski
DeVillier	Lyons	Tarver
DuBuisson	Mack	Thomas
Duplessis	Magee	Thompson
Echols	Marcelle	Turner
Edmonds	Marino	Villio
Emerson	McCormick	White
Firment	McFarland	White
Fisher	McKnight	Willard
Freeman	McMahen	Wright
Freiberg	Miguez	Zeringue
Frieman	Miller, D.	
Gadberry	Miller, G.	

Total - 91

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Boyd	Farnum	Horton
Brass	Fontenot	Johnson, T.
Carter, W.	Garofalo	Moore
Cox	Geymann	
Edmonston	Hollis	

Total - 13

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Bryant moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 232—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES EDMONSTON, CORMIER, FIRMENT, HORTON,  
CHARLES OWEN, AND SCHAMERHORN  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 32:411.2 and R.S. 40:1321(N)(3) and (4), relative to the issuance, renewal, or revocation of a driver's license or special identification card; to prohibit the use of vaccination verification or immunity status for the issuance, renewal, or revocation of a state-issued driver's license or special identification card; to prohibit the inclusion of vaccination verification or immunity status on a state-issued driver's license or special identification card; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Edmonston moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Harris	Orgeron
Amedee	Hilferty	Owen, C.
Bacala	Hodges	Pressly
Bagley	Horton	Riser
Beaullieu	Huval	Schamerhorn
Bishop	Illg	Schlegel
Carrier	Ivey	Seabaugh
Cormier	Johnson, M.	St. Blanc
Coussan	Kerner	Stagni
Crews	Mack	Stefanski
Davis	Magee	Tarver
DeVillier	McCormick	Thomas
DuBuisson	McFarland	Thompson
Edmonds	McKnight	Turner
Edmonston	McMahen	Villio
Emerson	Miguez	White
Firment	Miller, G.	White
Freiberg	Mincey	Wright
Frieman	Muscarello	
Goudeau	Nelson	

Total - 58

NAYS

Adams	Hughes	Marcelle
Brown	Jefferson	Marino
Bryant	Jenkins	Miller, D.
Carpenter	Jordan	Newell
Carter, R.	LaCombe	Pierre
Freeman	Landry	Selders
Glover	Larvadain	Willard
Green	Lyons	

Total - 23

ABSENT

Bourriaque	Echols	Hollis
Boyd	Farnum	Johnson, T.
Brass	Fisher	Moore
Butler	Fontenot	Owen, R.
Carter, W.	Gadberry	Phelps
Cox	Gaines	Romero
Deshotel	Garofalo	Zeringue
Duplessis	Geymann	
Total - 23		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Edmonston moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 246—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE PHELPS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:863(A)(3)(a), relative to sanctions for violations of required vehicle liability security; to modify the lapse period applicable to sanctions for lapse of required liability security; to provide for rule promulgation; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Phelps, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Phelps gave notice of her intention to call House Bill No. 246 from the calendar on Monday, March 28, 2022.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 326—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 4:218.1, relative to horse racing; to provide relative to historical horse racing; to provide relative to license fees; to authorize the Louisiana State Racing Commission to collect a license fee on historical horse racing; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Stefanski moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	Miller, G.
Adams	Gaines	Mincey
Amedee	Glover	Nelson
Bacala	Goudeau	Newell
Bagley	Green	Orgeron
Beaulieu	Hilferty	Owen, C.
Bishop	Horton	Owen, R.
Bourriaque	Hughes	Phelps
Brass	Huval	Pierre
Brown	Illg	Pressly
Bryant	Ivey	Romero
Carpenter	Jefferson	Schamerhorn

Carrier	Jenkins	Schlegel
Carter, R.	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Cormier	Jordan	Selders
Coussan	Kerner	St. Blanc
Crews	LaCombe	Stagni
Davis	Landry	Stefanski
Deshotel	Larvadain	Tarver
DeVillier	Lyons	Thomas
DuBuisson	Magee	Thompson
Duplessis	Marcelle	Turner
Echols	Marino	Villio
Edmonston	McFarland	Wheat
Emerson	McKnight	White
Fisher	McMahen	Willard
Freeman	Miguez	Wright
Freiberg	Miller, D.	Zeringue
Total - 84		

NAYS

Edmonds	Hodges	McCormick
Firmont	Johnson, M.	Riser
Harris	Mack	
Total - 8		

ABSENT

Boyd	Farnum	Geymann
Butler	Fontenot	Hollis
Carter, W.	Gadberry	Moore
Cox	Garofalo	Muscarello
Total - 12		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Stefanski moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 331—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MCFARLAND  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:633(1) and (2), relative to tax administration; to provide for the timing for scaling and measuring of trees, timber, and pulpwood for severance tax purposes; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. McFarland moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	Miguez
Adams	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bacala	Glover	Mincey
Bagley	Goudeau	Muscarello
Beaulieu	Green	Nelson
Bishop	Harris	Newell
Bourriaque	Hilferty	Orgeron
Boyd	Hodges	Owen, C.
Brass	Horton	Phelps
Brown	Hughes	Pierre
Bryant	Huval	Pressly
Butler	Illg	Riser
Carpenter	Ivey	Romero

Carrier	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Schlegel
Cormier	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Coussan	Johnson, T.	Selders
Crews	Jordan	St. Blanc
Davis	Kerner	Stagni
Deshotel	LaCombe	Stefanski
DeVillier	Landry	Tarver
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Thomas
Duplessis	Lyons	Thompson
Echols	Mack	Turner
Edmonds	Magee	Villio
Edmonston	Marcelle	Wheat
Emerson	Marino	White
Firment	McCormick	Willard
Fisher	McFarland	Wright
Freeman	McKnight	Zeringue
Freiberg	McMahen	
Total - 95		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Carter, W.	Fontenot	Hollis
Cox	Garofalo	Moore
Farnum	Geymann	Owen, R.
Total - 9		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. McFarland moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 421—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE GREGORY MILLER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 38:304(A), relative to the requirements for a levee commissioner; to provide relative to the language and education requirement for a levee commissioner; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Gregory Miller moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Adams	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bacala	Goudeau	Mincey
Bagley	Green	Muscarello
Beaullieu	Harris	Nelson
Bishop	Hilferty	Newell
Bourriaque	Hodges	Orgeron
Boyd	Horton	Owen, C.
Brass	Hughes	Phelps
Bryant	Illg	Pierre
Butler	Ivey	Pressly
Carpenter	Jefferson	Romero
Carrier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Johnson, M.	Schlegel
Coussan	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Crews	Jordan	Selders
Davis	Kerner	St. Blanc

Deshotel	LaCombe	Stagni
DeVillier	Landry	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Tarver
Duplessis	Lyons	Thomas
Echols	Mack	Thompson
Edmonds	Magee	Turner
Edmonston	Marcelle	Villio
Emerson	Marino	Wheat
Firment	McCormick	White
Fisher	McFarland	Willard
Freeman	McKnight	Wright
Freiberg	McMahen	Zeringue
Frieman	Miguez	
Total - 89		

NAYS

Brown	Glover	Riser
Total - 3		

ABSENT

Amedee	Farnum	Hollis
Carter, R.	Fontenot	Huval
Carter, W.	Garofalo	Moore
Cox	Geymann	Owen, R.
Total - 12		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Gregory Miller moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 598—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE SELDERS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1730.33, relative to building codes and inspections; to provide for the applicability of building codes; to provide for determining the applicable codes; to expressly require the inspector to conduct inspections under the proper codes; to provide for the resolution of ambiguity in determining the applicable code; to provide for the scope of inspector authority; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Selders, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Michael Johnson gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 515 from the calendar on Tuesday, March 29, 2022.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Bacala gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 727 from the calendar on Monday, March 28, 2022.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 252—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE EDMONDS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Children's Code Article 1180(A), relative to adoption; to provide for venue for adoptions; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.



Rep. Edmonds sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Edmonds to Engrossed House Bill No. 252 by Representative Edmonds

**AMENDMENT NO. 1**

On page 1, line 16, insert the following:

"~~(5)~~(4) The juvenile court which previously terminated parental rights of a parent with respect to the child to be adopted."

On motion of Rep. Edmonds, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Edmonds moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	McMahan
Adams	Frieman	Miguez
Amedee	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Bacala	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bagley	Glover	Mincey
Beaullieu	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bishop	Green	Nelson
Bourriaque	Harris	Newell
Boyd	Hilferty	Orgeron
Brass	Hodges	Owen, C.
Brown	Horton	Phelps
Bryant	Hughes	Pierre
Butler	Huval	Pressly
Carpenter	Illg	Riser
Carrier	Ivey	Romero
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Jenkins	Schlegel
Coussan	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, T.	Selders
Davis	Jordan	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Kerner	Stagni
DeVillier	LaCombe	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Landry	Tarver
Duplessis	Larvadain	Thomas
Echols	Lyons	Thompson
Edmonds	Mack	Turner
Edmonston	Marcelle	Villio
Emerson	Marino	Wheat
Firment	McCormick	White
Fisher	McFarland	Willard
Freeman	McKnight	Wright

Total - 93

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Carter, W.	Garofalo	Moore
Cox	Geymann	Owen, R.
Farnum	Hollis	Zeringue
Fontenot	Magee	

Total - 11

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Edmonds moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Thompson, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent at this time.

**Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent**

The following members introduced the following entitled House and House Concurrent Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 22—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMPSON

**A RESOLUTION**

To commend the Louisiana Sweet Potato Advertising and Development Commission on its seventieth anniversary.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Thompson, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 23—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE WHEAT

**A RESOLUTION**

To commend the Ponchatoula High School girls' basketball team on winning the Louisiana High School Athletic Association 2022 Class 5A state championship.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Wheat, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**Introduction of House Bills and Joint Resolutions**

The following named members introduced the following House Bills and Joint Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 867—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MOORE

**AN ACT**

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:267(A)(2) and (E), to enact R.S. 32:267(A)(3) and (4), and to repeal R.S. 32:57.4 and 267.1, relative to the designation of highway safety corridors by the Department of Transportation and Development; to remove references to electronic enforcement; to provide for penalties; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

**Privileged Report of the Committee on Enrollment**

March 24, 2022

To the honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Enrollment to submit the following report:

---

# Page 42 HOUSE

8th Day's Proceedings - March 24, 2022

---

The following House Resolutions have been properly enrolled:

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 1—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER  
A RESOLUTION

To amend and readopt House Rule 6.1(B) of the Rules of Order of the House of Representatives to provide for select committees and the powers, functions, and duties of select committees.

Respectfully submitted,

STEPHANIE HILFERTY  
Chairwoman

The above House Resolutions contained in the report were signed by the Speaker of the House and taken by the Clerk of the House to the Secretary of State in accordance with the rules of the House.

### **Leave of Absence**

Rep. Fontenot - 1 day

### **Adjournment**

On motion of Rep. Thompson, at 3:50 P.M., the House agreed to adjourn until Monday, March 28, 2022, at 3:00 P.M.

The Speaker of the House declared the House adjourned until 3:00 P.M., Monday, March 28, 2022.

MICHELLE D. FONTENOT  
Clerk of the House

ANGELA S. SMITH  
Assistant Clerk of the House / Journal Clerk